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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CORPORATE CHART
£ B 2 &
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CORPORATE CHART
£ B R 8
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BB R E
TOTAL ASSETS DISTRIBUTION
EERES M
Interests Interests
in PYI in PYI
REES RERES
SR Total Assets Value g Total Assets Value
HK$3,606M HK$3,126M
EEHAE: EEAE:
3.606BEEETT 3 126BEE#E T
Others
Hith Others
15% Hity
15%
2016 2015
—E-XE —E-%fE
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
EARHEE ABAEZR BREXEZR
HK$'M HK Cents
BEETR AL
55.90
434 436
240
214 27.12 27.70
18.09
110
IJ 9.49
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
“2--F CZB-=f ZZ-NF ZZ-1F ZEB-~F “2--F ZB-=Zf ZEZ-NF ZZ-1F ZEB-AF
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETHE®mE S

| am pleased fo present to shareholders the annual report of ITC
Corporation Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of Financial Performance

The Group reported a profit of HK$436 million attributable to
shareholders (2015: HK$240 million) and basic earnings per
share of HK27.70 cents (2015: HK18.09 cents) for the year ended
31st March, 2016. The increase in results compared with last
year was mainly aftributable to the increase in contribution
from ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITC Properties”) and gain
on acquisitions of additional interests in ITC Properties and PYI
Corporation Limited ("PYI").

AARARBRIEZBFEELEEEBERAR (TR
AR REMBAR ((AEED#EE—F—X
F=A=+—HLEFEZF®R-

E 3 365
B R CE

HE-Z-—XEZA=Z1+—HIFE  KEBEEK
15 % B FE 15 3% F1)436,000,0008 7T (—Z T — R F ¢
240,000,000 7T) kTR E AR ZF £27.70% 1l
ZE—RF 1 18.098(l) c EEWEFEMN -
ERRREEFESRBARAR ([EEME])
ZEREN  UARKEEEERREEEFR
RNAEIN(RE]) BEIMER 2 W -
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # © ¥ 2 @8 H BR » 3
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
N +
FEHREE
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥ EEE (2
Review of Financial Performance (continued) Bk IE O (45)
Analysis of the Group's performance is as follows: RNEBFBXRRZDOHWOT -
2016 2015
—E-XE —T—AEF
HKS$'M HKS'M
Share of results of associates: ik N S i
ITC Properties R E 480 253
PYI RE (82) 23
Burcon Burcon (8) (13)
390 263
Net loss on net decrease in Bt AR R 2 FR D
inferests in associates 2B F R O) ©)
Gain on acquisitions of additional W BB N R REAME 2
interests in associates Z Wz 90 27
Net loss on other investments REEMIGE MEEERS
and operations 2R (40) (44)
Profit attributable to shareholders 1% B8 {1k )i F) 436 240
LISTED STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS FHEREMIREEER

ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITC Properties”)

ITC Properties and its subsidiaries (the "ITC Properties Group”) is
principally engaged in property development and investment in
Macau, the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), Hong Kong
and Canada. The ITC Properties Group is also engaged in the
development, investment and operation of hotels and leisure
business in the PRC and Hong Kong, securities investments and
the provision of loan financing services.

In order to benefit from the continual return from ITC Properties,
the Group elected scrip shares for the final dividend of ITC
Properties for the year ended 31st March, 2015 and for the
interim dividend for the interim ended 30th Sepfember, 2015.
Furthermore, the Group acquired on-market approximately 6
million shares of ITC Properties during the year at an aggregate
cash consideration of approximately HK$18.2 million. As a result
of the above, the Group’s interest in ITC Properties increased from
32.6% as at 31st March, 2015 to 33.6% as at 31st March, 2016.
Accordingly, the Group recorded a gain of approximately HK$27
million on the above increase in interest in ITC Properties.

BEMEFRBEERAR ([EHHE])

RHMENEMBAR ([EFHESE]) TERN
B EARKME ([HE]) - BERNEX
REMEFBHREKE - REHESETRTE R
BENBER RENEEBELERES &
FREMRUE SRR E R

BB EEESES R ZE®  AEEEE
MR EROUREZ-_ZE—RAE=A=+—H1F
FEEEBENRKEREREE ST —HENA
=+ HIEFESRE RIS o o RERERP
REZ LAA F£4918,200,000 TH IR & REE™
% 8 & 496,000,00008 @AF AR (9 - HIIA £
B AEBEREEEZ BB S —AF =8
=t —HZ3R26%EME T NE=Z/A=+—
H233.6% &It - NEBER Fall MR E 2
HE 75 38 D&% 15 U 2 £927,000,0007% JT ©
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETHE®mE S

LISTED STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS (continued)

ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITC Properties”) (continued)

ITC Properties recorded a profit of HKS$1,460 million attributable
to its shareholders for the year ended 31st March, 2016. The
increase in profit as compared with HK$804 million for last year
was mainly attributable fo a considerable increase in share
of profits from an associate, Empresa De Fomento Industrial E
Comercial Concérdia, S.A., in which ITC Properties has 35.5%
effective interest. As a result, the Group shared a profit of HK$480
million from ITC Properties for the current year.

PYI Corporation Limited ("PYI”)

Based in Hong Kong, PYI focuses on ports and infrastructure
development and investment, and the operation of ports and
logistics facilities, in the Yangtze River region of China. It also
engages in land and property development and investment
in association with ports and infrastructure development. In
addition, PYI provides comprehensive engineering and property-
related services through Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited.

During the year, the Group acquired on-market approximately
78 million shares of PYl, at an aggregate cash consideration of
approximately HK$13.6 million. As a result of the acquisition, the
Group’s inferest in PYIl increased from 26.8% as af 31st March,
2015 to 28.5% as at 31st March, 2016. Accordingly, the Group
recorded a gain of approximately HK$63 million for the increase
in interest in PYI.

PYI recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of HK$298 million
for the year ended 31st March, 2016, as compared with a profit
of HK$86 million for the year ended 31st March, 2015. The loss
was mainly attributable to (a) a provision made for certain stock
of properties under development situated at Xiao Yangkou of
Rudong County, Nantong City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC; (b) the
recognition of loss on fair value changes of investment properties
situated mainly at Xiao Yangkou and Nantong City; and (c) an
unrealised exchange loss arising from Renminbi denominated
monetary assets. As a result, the Group shared a loss of HK$82
million from PYI for the year.

Burcon NutraScience Corporation ("Burcon”)

Burcon is a leader in developing functionally and nufritionally
valuable plant-based proteins. Its shares are listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange, the NASDAQ Global Market and the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange. Since 1999, Burcon has developed a portfolio of
composition, application, and process patents originating from
its core protein extraction and purification technology. Burcon
has developed CLARISOY™, a soy protein which offers clarity
and complete nutrition for low pH systems; Peazazz® pea protein
which is uniquely soluble with clean flavor characteristics; and
Puratein®, Supertein® and Nutratein®, three canola protein isolates
with unique functional and nutritional attributes.

EHRBEMEREERR (#)
BEMEXBERADEELE]) (B)

EEMEREE T NF=ZA=1t—HI%F
JE 8% 15 B B JE 5 3% F1,460,000,00078 Tt ° i A
# 2% 4 2804,000,0008 T AT - EBHK
EREMENEEBIB5%T R ER 2B L A T
R MH AR R G ZATEREKXEEE AT
B Eit  AEBERAFEHGEFHERN R
480,000,00078 JT °

REFBERRA] ([RE])

RENFBREN  BENPERTARAEZE

MERRZRZFAERKRE  ANE D%ﬂ%/m?&ﬁm
2B TREEBORERERFAEMEEZL
WHEEMBEMRERD UBBREEZXESE
BERAA BEEEZ IREYEEBZ R

K& BA$ FE A ™% W EE 478,000,0000%
RER G - BIRSMRE 4 A13,600,0008 7T - F
F%HQH%AKEIW%%EU%IEE T-FHFE=
A=+—B2268% HEMER _ZT—NF=A
=—+—HZ285%° Bt KEBEFNRE 2 #
75 38 00 8% 15 Uk 2% #963,000,000/% T °

RENBEE T AR"F=ZA=+—"HILFEHSE
[i% 51 15 E518.298,000,000/8 7T * MEZ —ZT—H
F = A=+ — B 1-F % 8|#£15 )% /86,000,000
T BEIFEHRNQEURFBIIHFEmBET
NRBNFAZATERFPHFEMEELBER
B OFEEFRNFOREBT2REME
BEATEBEEHEE RCOUARBAEAM
CEBEEEEREAIELEE Bt A5H
AN [ #(5{R % B5 18 482,000,000 7T °

Burcon NutraScience Corporation ( [Burcon)

BurcontAHEZE A MMENEE RS EESBEY
BYERAE FMERELA ERHRZ M
LEHFRGT M ERE2EMB L EF B
BERSHEM - B—NLLNLF#E » BurconB £
ERBREFCEMEAE Z2ZOEME  BE
H—RVEK - ER KN TEFHE - Burcont
% CLARISOYMAK ZEHE e REpHEZEB R
REBHMTE 2 EE  PeazazzMEEHE -
ABEKBS M REEH O : LA KPuratein® »
Supertein® & Nutratein® * =115 & B B BRI 4L
LEERFEZINIEHSBEARSD -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETE®mE S

LISTED STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS (continued)

Burcon NutraScience Corporation ("Burcon”) (continued)

Burcon’s flagship protein technology, CLARISOY™, has been
licensed to Archer-Daniels-Midland Company ("ADM"), a leader
in the global food ingredient industry listed in the U.S., since
March 2011. In July 2015, ADM demonstrated three products
containing variations of CLARISOY™ at the 2015 Institute of
Food Technologist Annual Meeting & Food Expo. Burcon expects
ADM'’s full-scale commercial CLARISOY™ production facility to be
operational by mid-2016. Burcon is also making progress on its
second major protfein technology, Peazazz® pea protein, and is in
discussions with potential commercialisation partners.

In April 2015, Burcon completed its rights offering for
approximately 1.55 million common shares at C$2.26 per share
for aggregate gross proceeds of C$3.5 million. The Group has
applied additional subscription and fotally subscribed for
approximately 0.4 million common shares under the rights
offering and so the Group's inferest in Burcon increased from
20.4% to 20.6% after the rights offering. As compensation to
the Group’s commitment to subscribe, the Group received
non-transferable warrants entitling the Group fo acquire up
fo approximately 0.2 million common shares of Burcon at an
exercise price of C$2.26 per share.

In March 2016, the Group exercised certain share warrants to
acquire approximately 0.1 million shares for a total consideration
of approximately C$0.3 million and the Group's interest in Burcon
increased from 20.6% to 20.8% accordingly.

For the year ended 31st March, 2016, Burcon recorded a
loss of HK$39 million as compared with HK$45 million for the
corresponding year 2015. As a result, the Group shared a loss of
HK$8 million.

Note: CLARISOY™, a trademark of ADM, is under license to Burcon from
ADM.

EHERBHRERR (#)

Burcon NutraScience Corporation ([Burcon])

(&)

HE-Z— —%F = A#  Burcon®#EArcher-
Daniels-Midland Company (R EE 7 - IF %
EHREMIEENBEWN 2 AR L THE
[ADM ) 1 Ff E 7% & B & HIITCLARISOY™ © 72
—E—RFEH - ADM2015 Institute of Food
Technologist Annual Meeting & Food Expo & 7~
= FXCLARISOY™ R 7I| EE @ ° Burconf& ,HﬂADME”\]
CLARISOYM B2 HH E A ER BN T —RF
FhFBEE - Burconﬁﬁ%_lﬁizzﬁélgﬁﬁf
PeazazZ®M &R E MESHER - HIFEBER
%ﬂi%ﬁzﬁ: TTuTuFHEI °©

—ZE—RFEMA  BurconTT K H #1,550,0000%

BR RS SRIEE2.26007T - ﬁﬁ?%?k
Iﬁi@ 54 £ 43,500,000007T © AN 5 B A 2R
% Eiﬂkﬁt%ﬁw,ﬁ%ﬁﬂ 'm,\u/uﬁ%i@zlooooo

% &3 S 0 7K 52 B PABurcon B #E 25 & 1 F120.4%
1 7 AR B E 15 5920.6% © 1E AR E B A RE
MEE ~EECE R T EEORBRES

R FRERMIZ G226 T2 THEBEERZY
200,000%Burcon ] & i@ A% J& 15 ©

S’i

:?*/TEEH C REETTEE TR GH R E
7 LA 3R B8 49100,0000% P& 17 - 42X (& 49 &300,000
j]l]ﬂ: B 7N 5 B PABurcon B # 5 B It F520.6% 1%
Z£20.8% ©

REBEEZZE—R"F=ZA=+—HIFE  Burcon
#% 15 &5 1839,000,000/8 7T - — T — A F [ A
/45,000,000 7T c B It - AREE#E G BEAR
8,000,000/% 7T °

Btat : CLARISOY™BADME] B 1Z + FHADMEF A]
Burcon{Z /H -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBEE

LISTED STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS (continued)

The Group’s shareholding inferests in the major listed strategic
investments are summarised below:

EHREMERERE (#)

AEERFE FMERBMEREER 2 RERER
wan R

Interest held

AR RRE TR ST

As at the
Name of As at 31st date of this
investee company Place of listing Stock code March, 2016 report
FEER

FRBRERARZ REB—XKF
=1 L E BRAD 1R 5% =Z=HA=+—H RAE®RE B
ITC Properties Hong Kong Stock Exchange 199 33.6% 33.7%
B E BB 3P
PYI Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498 28.5% 28.5%
REE BB 3P
Burcon Toronto Stock Exchange BU 20.8% 20.8%

SMEEFIHM

NASDAQ Global Market BUR

MENER 2T

Frankfurt Stock Exchange BNE

MANDATORY UNCONDITIONAL CASH OFFER

In April 2015, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles ("Dr. Chan”), an
executive director and the chairman of the Board, acquired a
total of approximately 230 million shares of the Company for an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$168 million. As
such, Dr. Chan’s shareholding in the Company increased from
38.2% to 54.2%. As a result of the aforesaid share acquisition,
Galaxyway Investments Limited ("Galaxyway”), a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Chan, made a mandatory
unconditional cash offer for all the shares in the issued share
capital of the Company (other than those already owned or
agreed to be acquired by Galaxyway and its concert parties)
(the "Offer”) at HK$0.73 per share. The Offer was closed in early
June 2015 and had received valid acceptance of approximately
0.3 million shares under the Offer. As such, Dr. Chan, directly
and indirectly owned approximately 778 million shares of the
Company, and his shareholding was 54.2% upon the close of the
Offer.

BHEERGRERBEY

AZE—REWA PTESRESSEER
Bl 5% 8 £ ([BR1E L)) LA 42 R (& £9168,000,000
78 7T UL B & £k #9230,000,0000% A8 A 7] B {5 °
bt - BRI R AR R 2 AR H38.2%E £54.2% °
RRET EARHWE  —FHaREEEE:
E WA 27 A BlGalaxyway Investments Limited
([ Galaxyway |) A& % 170.7378 7T * LA R A
BETRAFR Z 25D (Galaxyway & B — 5
THATEHBIREBSWE CBROBRIN IR
HoasEEEHRSBBEN(TEDN] - 24
BERZZE—RFNAUER  UHEEHERIL
300,000 i 0w BRIEE M - Fitt - RELDERE
PR1E + B 5 R R B2 H0 B £9778,000,000% 78 A )
0 Bo B A HE 7554.2% ©
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETE®mE S

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

In June 2015, the Company completed a placement, through
a placing agent, of 120 million new shares of the Company at
a price of HKS$0.88 per share to not less than six independent
third parties and net proceeds of approximately HKS$S102.8
million (the net placing price was approximately HK$0.857
per share) were raised. The placing price of HK$0.88 per share
represents a discount of approximately 18.5% to the closing
price of HK$1.08 per share as at 3rd June, 2015, the date of the
placing agreement. The net proceeds have been fully utilised
as to HK$33.8 million for the acquisition of additional interests
in associates and as to HK$69 million for the Group’s general
working capital which included purchase of trading securities,
loan financing services and administrative expenses. Such fund
raising activity has enlarged the shareholder base and capital
base of the Company, and has strengthened the financial
position of the Group.

As at 31st March, 2016, the Group’s total assets of HK$3,606
million and equity attributable to shareholders of HK$3,534 million
represent an increase of 15% and 14% as compared with the last
year respectively.

The Group confinued to adopt a prudent funding and treasury
policy to manage its liquidity needs. The objective is to maintain
adequate funds for financing working capital and seizing
investment opportunities, as and when they become available.

As at 31st March, 2016, current assets and current liabilities of
the Group were HK$481 million and HK$70 million respectively.
Accordingly, the Group’s current ratio was 7 (2015: 27).

GEARING

As at 31st March, 2016, the Group had bank deposits, bank
balances and cash of HK$52 million and bank borrowings of
HK$62 million. All bank borrowings were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, either repayable within one year or on demand and
at floating interest rates.

The Group’s gearing ratio was 0.3% as at 31st March, 2016, as
compared with zero as at 31st March 2015. The gearing ratio
is calculated on the basis of net borrowings over the equity
attributable to shareholders. Net borrowings is arrived at by
deducting bank deposits, bank balances and cash from
borrowings.

RBESRMEER

RZZTE—AF A ARAIEBEERERS
A& 1EE0.88/ B L M AT DR N BB B = F L
120,000,000 A& A Bl ¥ A& 9 - FR 13 S IB F 58
#7102,800,000/%8 T (JF B & (B 49 A & 1%0.857/8
JC) c M EEEFR0SSETLRNA _E—HF A
B (EEHzEBEH 2 WHmESR .08 LT
EA18.5% I RIBFRHE2HB A MEF
33,800,000/8 7L AEEE N & R Al 2 BIMER
269,000,000 LRI EASE —fREEED -
BIEBERSES  EXRERBSRITRAY -
EHEEEHBATARRIMBREER RE AR
B WHEME T AEEZ AR -

KEBR -_ZE—-—NE=ZfA=+—"HB2#"*
E 53,606,000,0008 T MR EGH R A
3,534,000,00078 7T + BEF 5 BIIEI115% % 14% °

AEBEBRERDNEERENEBRRERER
ESHRE BREARBERKESRNEEES
P UWERREERERICERERK

AT RNFZAZ+—H AEENRBHEE
Kingha & Bl A481,000,0005 7T K 70,000,000
BT Bt AEEzRBEXART(ZE—H
F027) o

EERMBLR

RZB—RNE=ZA=+—8 AEERITEFER "
R1T4 17 23R £ 552,000,000 7T A R ER1TE
X A562,000,000 7T © FT B RITEREIABETLA
BA AR —FREEIIZBMNER - WIRFH
B X B -
AEEBR-_ZE—ARF-_A=+—HZEEAEL
RAE03% ML —_ZET—RAF=A=+—HBAZ -
BEEAGBHERZEFTFERUREEGESR
B EFFRNETIRRITER ROTEFR
REBBH -
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # & ¥ % HR &I

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBEE

EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, hence the Group’s exposure to fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates is minimal and no foreign exchanging
hedging instruments are used.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2016, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st March, 2016, the Group had a total of 60 employees.
The Group’s remuneration policy is to ensure that the Group’s
remuneration structure is appropriate and aligns with the
Group’s goals and objectives. The employees’ remuneration is
based on the employees’ skill, knowledge and involvement in
the Company’s affairs and is determined by reference to the
Company’s performance, as well as remuneration benchmark in
the industry and the prevailing market conditions. The ultimate
objective of the remuneration policy is fo ensure that the Group
is able to attract, retain and motivate a high-calibre team which
is essenfial fo the success of the Company. The Group also offers
benefits to employees including discretionary bonus, training,
provident funds and medical coverage.The share option scheme
of the Company is established for the eligible participants
(including employees). No share options were granted during the
year and there is no outstanding share option as at 31st March,
2016 and as af the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,
2016

In April 2016, the Group entered info a convertible note
agreement to subscribe for Burcon’s 3-year 8% convertible note
(the "Note”) with principal amount of C$2.0 million. The Note was
issued in May 2016 and can be converted at C$4.01 per share
(subject to adjustments) from 1st July, 2016 upto its maturity date.

The Company entfered info a memorandum of understanding
with an independent third party in October 2015 (the "MOU") in
respect of a possible acquisition of 25% to 33% indirect interest
in a reputable hotel located in Vancouver, British Columbia,
Canada, the expiry date of which was extended to 29th
April, 2076. In April 2016, the Company entered info a second
supplemental memorandum of understanding to further extend
the expiry date of the MOU to 31st May, 2016. On 31st May, 2016,
the Company entfered into a fermination agreement to ferminate
the MOU and the earnest money was refunded to the Company
accordingly.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETE®mE S

SECURITIES IN ISSUE

As a result of 120 million new shares of the Company issued
in June 2015 and the issue of shares under the scrip dividend
schemes for final dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2015
and for interim dividend for the period ended 30th September,
2015, the total number of issued shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each was 1,667,654,793 as at 31st March, 2016.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.0 cents per share (2015: HK4.0 cents per share)
for the year ended 31st March, 2016 to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company as at the close of business on Wednesday,
24th August, 2016. The proposed final dividend is expected to
be paid to the shareholders of the Company by post on or
about Thursday, 6th October, 2016 following approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The
proposed final dividend is conditional upon the passing of
ordinary resolution(s) to approve the dividend at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The Board has also
proposed that the final dividend should be satisfied in cash, with
an option to elect scrip dividend of shares, in respect of part or
all of such dividend. The market value of the shares to be issued
under the scrip dividend proposal will be fixed by reference to
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
for the three consecutive trading days ending 24th August, 2016
less a discount of 5 percent of such average price or par value
of shares, whichever is the higher. The proposed scrip dividend
is conditional upon the Hong Kong Stock Exchange granting
the listing of, and permission to deal in, the new shares to be
issued and the passing at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company of ordinary resolution(s) to approve the
final dividend. A circular giving full details of the scrip dividend
proposal and a form of election will be sent fo shareholders of
the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 23rd August, 2016 to Wednesday, 24th August, 2016, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
fransfers of shares of the Company accompanied by the relevant
share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at Level
22, Hopewell Cenftre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration by no later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 22nd August,
2016.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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OUTLOOK

The global economy is continued fo be volatile and is expected
to remain challenging. The Hong Kong’'s economy would
inevitably be affected by the slowdown of growth in China and
the depreciation in Renminbi. The recovery of the European
economy may be affected by various unstable geopolitical
factors, including the impact of Brexit after the EU referendum, the
threat of terror attack and refugee issues. Furthermore, with signs
of recovery in the United States, the Federal Reserve may raise
interest rates in the coming future. All of the above may create
ripple effects on the market.

Against the current economic backdrop, our Group remains
cautious with our business outlook. Nevertheless, the Group is
attentive and stayed alert to identify and capture any suitable
investment opportunities that may arise in the market.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to adhere to its long-
term strategy of exploring investment opportunities with growth
potential in a prudent yet proactive approach. Accordingly, we
will strive to maintain a diversified investment portfolio and to
maximise our value to shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank the shareholders for their confinuous support to the
Company and extend my appreciation fo all management and
staff members for their contribution and dedication throughout
the year.

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2016
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

ESNWEBERSRN

DIRECTORS

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, aged 61, is the Chairman of
the Company. He joined the Group in February 1997 and is
responsible for the Group’s corporate strategies and planning.
Dr. Chan holds an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws and
a Bachelor’'s Degree in Civil Engineering and has over 36
years’ international corporate management and strategic
investment experience in a diversified range of businesses
including property, infrastructure, construction, entertainment
and media, hotel and related business, information technology,
pharmaceutical and health products. Dr. Chan is the chairman
and a non-executive director of Television Broadcasts Limited
(0511.HK). He retired as a non-executive director of PYI
Corporation Limited (0498.HK) on 5th September, 2014. Dr.
Chan is the sole director and beneficial owner of Chinaview
International Limited and Galaxyway Investments Limited which
are substantial shareholders of the Company as disclosed in
the section headed ‘“Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in shares of the Company” in the directors’ report of
this annual report. He is the father of Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan and
the elder brother of Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine, who are
both executive directors of the Company.

Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna, aged 61, is the Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company. She is also the Chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee, a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
She joined the Group in February 1997 and is responsible
for the Group’s operations and business development. Ms.
Chau has over 36 years’ experience in international corporate
management and finance. She holds a Bachelor’'s Degree and a
Master’'s Degree in Commerce and has professional accounting
qualifications and experience in different jurisdictions. She is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the CPA Australia, and a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia. Ms. Chau
is a director of Burcon NutraScience Corporation, the securities
of which are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (BU.TSX), the
NASDAQ Global Market (BUR.NASDAQ) and the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (BNE.FWB). She is a General Committee member of The
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies.
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Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine, aged 57, joined the Company as
an executive director in November 1997 and is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a diploma
in arts and has over 33 years’ experience in frading business
in the PRC. Mr. Chan is the younger brother of Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung. Charles, the controlling shareholder and the Chairman
of the Company and the sole director and beneficial owner of
Chinaview International Limited and Galaxyway Investments
Limited which are substantial shareholders of the Company, and
is the uncle of Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, an executive director of the
Company.

Chan Fut Yan, aged 62, joined the Company as an executive
director in December 1997. He is also a member of the Corporate
Governance Commiftee of the Company and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan has over 43 years’
experience in the local construction field specialising in planning
of construction business. He is also the managing director of ITC
Properties Group Limited (0199.HK).

Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, aged 32, joined the Company as an
executive director in March 2009 and is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated from Trinity
College of Arts and Sciences of Duke University, United States of
America, with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Political Science -
International Relations. He previously worked in the investment
banking division of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Mr. Chan is
an executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited (0199.HK)
and PYI Corporation Limited (0498.HK) (*PYI"). He is a director
of Burcon NutraScience Corporation, the securities of which
are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (BU.TSX), the NASDAQ
Global Market (BUR.NASDAQ) and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(BNE.FWB). Mr. Chan is an advisor to Bisagni Environmental
Enterprise (BEE Inc.). Mr. Chan ceased to be an alternate director
of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles upon retirement of Dr. Chan
as a non-executive director of PYl on 5th September, 2014. Mr.
Chan is a son of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, the controlling
shareholder and the Chairman of the Company and the sole
director and beneficial owner of Chinaview International Limited
and Galaxyway Investments Limited which are substantial
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Chan is also a nephew of
Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine, an executive director of the
Company.
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Chuck, Winston Calptor, aged 60, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in November 2001. He is also
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chuck
graduated from the University of Western Ontario, Canada with
a Bachelor of Arts Degree. He is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong and has over 34 years’ experience in the legal fields.
Mr. Chuck is an independent non-executive director of CNQC
International Holdings Limited (1240.HK). He was an independent
non-executive director of Starlight International Holdings Limited
(0485.HK) (now known as Shihua Development Company
Limited) until July 2014.

Lee Kit Wah, aged 60, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in July 2004. He is also the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Corporate
Governance Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Commifttee of the Company. Mr. Lee graduated
from University of Toronto, Canada with a Bachelor’s Degree in
Commerce. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He has been practising as a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong since 1988 and is the managing
director of an accountfing firm. Mr. Lee is also an independent
non-executive director of Datronix Holdings Limited (0889.HK). He
was an independent non-executive director of SinoCom Software
Group Limited (0299.HK) (now known as New Sports Group
Limited) until September 2013.
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Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, css, s, aged 71, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive director in June
2006. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Shek
graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor
of Arts Degree. Mr. Shek has been a member of the Legislative
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China representing the real estate and
construction functional constifuency since 2000. Currently, Mr.
Shek is a member of both the Court and the Council of the
University of Hong Kong and a member of the Court of Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. He is also a non-
executive director of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority. He retired as the Vice Chairman of the Independent
Police Complaints Council in Hong Kong on 1st January, 2015.
He also retired as a director of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited on 25th April, 2016. Mr. Shek was appointed
as a Justice of the Peace in 1995. He was awarded the Silver
Bauhinia Star in 2007 and was further awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star on 1st July, 2013. Mr. Shek is the vice chairman and
an independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group
Limited (0199.HK). He is the chairman and an independent non-
executive director of Chuang’s China Investments Limited (0298.
HK). Mr. Shek is also an independent non-executive director of
NWS Holdings Limited (0659.HK), Midas International Holdings
Limited (1172.HK), Paliburg Holdings Limited (0617.HK), Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (1212.HK), Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited (0367.HK), Country Garden Holdings
Company Limited (2007.HK), MTR Corporation Limited (0066.HK),
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (0047.HK), SUIM Holdings Limited
(0880.HK), China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (1313.HK),
Lai Fung Holdings Limited (1125.HK), Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited (0120.HK) and TUS International Limited (0872.
HK) (name of which has been changed from Jinheng Automotive
Safety Technology Holdings Limited on 28th January, 2016). He
is also an independent non-executive director of Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited, the manager of Champion Real
Estate Investment Trust (2778.HK). He is also an independent non-
executive director of Regal Portfolio Management Limited, the
manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (1881.HK). He was
an independent non-executfive director of Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited (1192.HK) until February 2014 and was an
independent non-executive director of Hsin Chong Construction
Group Ltd. (0404.HK) (now known as Hsin Chong Group Holdings
Limited) until May 2014. He ceased to serve as an independent
non-executive director of Dorsetft Hospitality International Limited
(a company which shares have been withdrawn from listing on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited effective from 4:00
p.m. on 16th October, 2015) on 11th March, 2016.
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SECRETARY

Kam Suet Fan, aged 51, is the Company Secretary of the
Company. She is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company and also the secretary of a subsidiary of the Company.
Ms. Kam has over 27 years’ experience in company secretarial
field. Prior to joining the Group in May 2002, she was the

company secretary of certain companies listed in Hong Kong.

She holds a Bachelor's Degree in Law from a university in China
and a Master of Arts Degree in Language and Law. She is an
associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.

WE

HEH 515 RARAHLERARWE - WAR
ARBETZHMBARZEERARA —H
MEBARZATME - HREIRARMEEHES
HEB - +EFER -R_ZEZ_FHAMAR
SEZH WEAETREBLHZARZAT
MWE - - BIHAHPE-—AABEHZEZRELE
I RBAREERERXBRLIEMN - BRAEE
FMELAEREANERITRAERAREE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 4 £ 3§ &

20



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # & ¥ % HR &I

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TXERB®RE S

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures. The Company
believes that good corporate governance practices are essential
for effective management to enhancing shareholders’ value. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise
a quality Board, sound internal controls, and transparency
and accountability to all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March, 2016,
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has continued to adopt the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix 10 fo the Listing Rules (the "Model Code") as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”). All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31st March, 2016.

The Company has also continued to adopt a code of conduct
governing securities fransactions by employees who may
possess or have access to inside information of the Company or
its securities.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE BOARD

The members of the Board are individually and collectively
responsible for the leadership and control, and for promoting
the success, of the Company by directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises eight Directors, including the Chairman, the Deputy
Chairman and Managing Director, three other executive
Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that strong independent
elements are included in the Board, enabling the Board to
exercise judgment independently and make decision objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

THE BOARD (continued)

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and therefore has adopted a policy on Board
diversity in June 2013. With a view fo achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. Board diversity would be considered based on a
number of measurable objectives, including but not limited to
skills, knowledge, experience, gender, age, length of services
and cultural and educational background. All Board candidates
will be considered and appointed based on meritocracy,
conftribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the policy,
as appropriate, and recommend any proposed changes to the
Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee of the Company has obligation to
review the size, structure and composition of the Board on an
annual basis. The Company has a diversified Board composition
which meets the aforesaid measurable objectives of the Board
diversity policy. Biographical details of the Directors are set out
on pages 16 to 19 of this annual report. A list containing the
names of all Directors and their roles and functions is published
on the respective websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company, which would be updated from time to time
when there are any changes. The Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
with each other, except that Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
is the elder brother of Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine and
Mr. Chan Yiu Lun, Alan is a son and a nephew of Dr. Chan
Kwok Keung, Charles and Mr. Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustfine
respectively.

As part of an ongoing process of Director’s training, the Directors
keep abreast of the latest developments to enhance and refresh
their knowledge and skills. All Directors are provided with training
and reading materials from time to time. During the year under
review, the Company has organized seminars and provided
relevant reading materials to the Directors on the amendments
to the Listing Rules relating to (i) the Code and Corporate
Governance Report; and the disclosure of financial information
with reference to the New Companies Ordinance and Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards; and (i) Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide.
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THE BOARD (continued)

A summary of the training received by the Directors for the year
ended 31st March, 2016 based on their training records provided
to the Company is as follows:

BEEg(#)
BExe(#)
BEARARFRENESEIEG  ESREE

TE-RFZAZtT—BHUEFEMEINEII
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Reading materials  Briefings/seminars
Name of Director BEEgs RMEER En e
Executive Directors HiTEF
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Bk B9 52 Vv v
(Chairman) (£/%)
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna IEESES Vv Vv
(Deputy Chairman and (Bl F /=R
Managing Director) EFELHE)
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine Bk B9 62 Vv v
Chan Fut Yan BR {56 2. v Vv
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan R 2 16 v Vv
Independent non-executive Directors BIIHITEE
Chuck, Winston Calptor 2EE vV Vv
Lee Kit Wah =3 Vv Vv
Shek Lai Him, Abraham BEH v Vv

The Board is responsible for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. It has delegated the Executive
Board with authority and responsibility for handling the
management functions and operations of the day-to-day
business of the Company, while reserving certain key matters
for the approval by the Board. The types of decisions to be
taken by the Board include annual and interim period financial
reporting and control, equity fund raising, declaratfion of interim
dividend and making recommendation of final dividend or other
distributions, notifiable transactions under Chapters 14 and T14A
of the Listing Rules and making recommendation for capital
reorganisation or scheme of arrangement of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

THE BOARD (continued)

During the year under review, four regular Board meetings were
held with at least fourteen days’ notice given to all Directors and
additional Board meeting(s) were held as and when necessary.
Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The Chairman met with the independent
non-executive Directors without the executive Directors being
present during the year. The Board and each Director have
separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management. A Director who considers a need for independent
professional advice in order to perform his/her duties as a
Director may convene, or request the secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”) to convene, a meeting of the
Board to approve the seeking of independent legal or other
professional advice. The Company has arranged directors and
officers liability insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against the Directors.

The attendance of each individual member of the following
meetings during the year under review is set out in the following
table:
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Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend
HEEE REREREZER
Corporate Annual
Audit Governance Nomination Remuneration General
Board  Committee Committee  Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Director EENF BExg B TEER BE ¥ REREF
£Z58 Z58 ZE%g ZE%g &
Executive Directors HITEZE
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles R 6/6 I7A
(Chairman) (£f)
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna EEE= 6/6 2/2 1/1 3/3 11
(Deputy Chairman and ( B EH#
Managing Director) EFBE)
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine  [REI# 5/6 I7A
Chan Fut Yan R R 6/6 2/2 171
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan iR 2 Bk 5/6 1/1
Independent non-executive BUHNTEE
Direcfors
Chuck, Winston Calptor BE 6/6 2/2 2/2 171 3/3 171
Lee Kit Wah FHRE 6/6 2/2 2/2 171 3/3 1
Shek Lai Him, Abraham AEH 6/6 2/2 1 %A
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director are
segregated and are held by different individuals. The Chairman
is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning and the
management of the operations of the Board, while the
Managing Director takes the lead in the Group’s operations and
business development. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
which provides a balance of power and authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until the
conclusion of the third annual general meeting from the date
of their last re-election and in accordance with the Company’s
amended and restated bye-laws (the "Bye-laws”). One of
the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Under the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the power to
appoint any person as a Director at any fime either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board and such person is subject to retirement and re-election
at the first general meeting or first annual general meeting
respectively after his/her appointment. All Directors are subject
to retirement and re-election by the Shareholders on a rotation
basis and pursuant to the Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation such that each Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting. The Board published the procedures
for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director
on the Company’s website and delegated its authority to the
Nomination Committee for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Nomination Committee of the Company
comprising three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Chuck, Winston Calptor and Mr. Lee Kit Wah,
and the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director, Ms. Chau
Mei Wah, Rosanna. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee adopted by the Board, which follow closely the
requirements of the code provisions of the Code as set out in the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The appointment of a new Director shall first be considered by
the Nomination Committee. In considering the appointment
of a Director, the Nomination Committee applies the criteria in
the nomination policy of the Company and identifies suitably
qualified candidate to become Board members to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for
consideration and approval. A candidate to be appointed
as independent non-executive Director must also satisfy the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Mr. Lee Kit Wah, an independent non-executive Director, shall
retire by rotation and be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and accordingly,
pursuant to code provision of A.4.3 of the Code, being an
independent non-executive Director serving the Board more than
nine years, his further appointment upon retirement by rotation
shall be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, reviewed the policy on Board diversity and the
progress on achieving the measurable objectives under such
policy, reviewed the independence of each of independent
non-executive Directors, made recommendation to the Board
for putting forward Directors, who are subject to retirement by
rotation, for re-appointment as Directors at the annual general
meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a Remuneration Committee of the
Company with a majority of the members being independent
non-executive Directors. As at the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chuck, Winston Calptor
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Lee
Kit Wah, and the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director,
Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and the senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and fransparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration. The Remuneration Committee, pursuant
to its terms of reference, has power either (i) to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
executive Directors and senior management; or (ii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management. During
the year under review, the Remuneration Committee determined,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration of executive
Directors and the Company Secretary. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the Board, which
follow closely the requirements of the code provisions of the
Code, are posted on the websites of the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
principally performed the followings: making recommendation to
the Board on Directors’ fees for the approval by the Shareholders
at the annual general meeting, approving/recommending the
directors’ fees of Directors and reviewing and approving the
remuneration and/or discretionary bonus of executive Directors
and the Company Secretary.

With the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee,
the Board sets the remuneration policy for the Directors and
senior management of the Company. This policy is fo ensure
that its remuneration structure is appropriate and aligns
with the Company’'s goals and objectives which should be
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the Directors and senior
management of the Company to run the Group successfully
without paying more than necessary. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Managing
Director of the Company about its proposals relating to
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company. The emoluments of the Directors
and the senior management of the Company are based on their
skills, knowledge and involvement in the Company’s affairs and
are determined by reference to the Company’s performance,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions. The ultimate objective of the
remuneration is to ensure that the Company is able to attract,
retain and motivate a high-calibre team which is essential to the
success of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Information on emoluments of the directors of the Company
for the year ended 31st March, 2016 is set outf in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements. During the year under review,
no Director or any of his/her associates was involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company consists of two executive Directors,
namely Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna (Chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee) and Mr. Chan Fut Yan and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chuck,
Winston Calptor and Mr. Lee Kit Wah.

The principal duties of the Corporate Governance Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
reviewing and monitoring (i) the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company; (ii) the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(iiiy the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to the Company’s employees and Directors; and
(iv) the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report. The terms of reference
of the Corporate Governance Committee, which follow closely
the requirements of the Code, was adopted by the Board. The
Corporate Governance Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties.

During the year under review, the Corporate Governance
Committee reviewed the corporate governance policy and the
compliance policy of the Company, and the code of conduct
for the Directors and the employees of the Company, reviewed
the compliance of the Code for the year ended 31st March,
2015 and for the six months ended 30th September, 2015, made
recommendation to the Board for the approval of the Corporate
Governance Report, and reviewed the training and confinuous
professional development of the Directors and the Company
Secretary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee of the
Company consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lee Kit Wah, Mr. Chuck, Winston Calptor and Mr.
Shek Lai Him, Abraham. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Kit Wah, who is a qualified accountant with exftensive
experience in financial reporting and controls.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Due to the amendments to the Code, the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee has been amended to include the duty
to review the risk management system of the Company with
effect from 1st April, 2016. Accordingly, the principal duties of
the Audit Committee include reviewing the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
(including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, fraining programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function), reviewing the
Group’s financial information and reviewing the relationship with
the external auditor of the Company. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee adopted by the Board, which follow closely
the requirements of the code provisions of the Code, have been
posted on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee performed the responsibilities under its
terms of reference and other duties as set out in code provisions
of the Code applicable to the Committee. It met with the
Directors and external auditors to review the interim/annual
results and reports. It considered and discussed the reports
with external auditors, with a view of ensuring that the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed
and made recommendation for the Board’s approval of the
draft audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st March, 2015 and the draft unaudited interim
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30th September, 2015, discussed the accounting policies and
practices which may affect the Group with the management
and the Company’s external auditor, made recommendation
on the re-appointment of external auditor for the approval of the
Shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company,
approved the fees charged by the external auditor; and
reviewed the internal control system of the Group.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION ZE B S
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ("Deloitte”), the Group's REARREZZE—HAFNATEARITZRFHE
principal auditor, was re-appointed by the Shareholders at the FEREe L AEBZITERYEMED - BalEy
annual general meeting of the Company held on 17th August, @7 ([EY ) ERFER AR T ZINEX
2015 as the Company’s external auditor until the next annual gl CHETERREFAE AL - REE—
general meeting. For the year ended 31st March, 2016, the total T-—RF=A=1T—HILFE  BEHFREHTL 2
fee paid/payable in respect of statutory audit and non-audit ETEREBNIERYERGS 2N EN 2 EREE
services provided by Deloitte is set out in the following table: FHINNTE
Fee paid/payable
Services rendered Frig it AR & gt ENEAR
HK$’000
FHET
Audit services EEEZER 1,420
Non-audit services: FEZRBER:
Taxation advisory 5+ 3 AR 7% 35
Review of interim results EHREEE 330
Special engagement BEZE 107
Total fee paid/payable for the year FTREN/ ENZEREH 1,892
Note: Statutory audit fee charged to profit and loss for the year Wit BEZZT—AF=ZA=+—HLEFERER
ended 31st March, 2016 was HK$1,472,000, comprising Mk 2 A ERAZE R B1,472,0008 7T © B
amounts of HK$1,420,000 and HK$52,000 paid and payable BENEREMEHRARRETHBLARZE
to Deloitte and other auditors of certain subsidiaries of the 4% BrA 2 338 5 511,420,0007% 7T K&252,000
Company respectively. BT °
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL EEHHMKERERZ2ER
STATEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial EEMANSESEETHREZSUBEE 2B H
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair xOYEHBEAAERBTBRN  FELRSRE
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and RBHEAEENAFZER - HEHREHE_ZT—XF
cash flows for that period. In preparing the financial statements A=+ RHUIFEZHBRERE  EEC0EM
for the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Directors have selected HRAAEZERE  EHATEMAE 2 HE &
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, HESH| - WIRHE KRS EERRB SRR o KA T
made judgments and estimates that are fair and reasonable YA EE M BREABRZSEHNAK
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern FIREASNAOE 7 BT LB R E=E -
basis. The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set outf in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 48
and 49 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to achieve
the Company’s business strategies and the Group’s business
operations. The Directors have adopted an internal control
policy for the Group. The internal control policy is fundamental
to the successful operation and day-to-day running of a business
and it assists the Company in achieving its business objectives.

The policy has been developed with a primary objective of
providing general guidance and recommendations on a
basic framework of internal control and risk management. The
Company’s internal control system comprises a well established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. Procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, fo ensure maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, and
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The purpose of the Company’s internal control is to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure to achieve Company’s business objectives.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions and
particularly the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board
process, as well as communications among Board members.
Biographical details of the Company Secretary are set out in
page 20 of this annual report. The remuneration paid to the
Company Secretary during the year ended 31st March, 2016
were within the remuneration band between HK$1,500,000 to
HK$2,500,000.

The Company Secretary confirmed that she has complied with
all the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing
Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board makes its endeavour to maintain an on going
and transparent communication with the Shareholders and,
in particular, uses general meetings to communicate with
them and encourage their participation. The Company
also uses various other means of communication with the
Shareholders, such as publication of annual and interim reports,
announcements, circulars and additional information on the
Group’s business activities and development on the Company’s
website: www.itc.com.hk.

A shareholders communication policy was adopted to ensure
that Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company.

In order to bring the constitution of the Company in line
with certain amendments made to the Listing Rules and to
incorporate certain housekeeping amendments, the adoption
of new Bye-laws to incorporate the aforesaid amendments was
approved by way of special resolution on 17th August, 2015
at the annual general meeting. A summary of the principal
amendments to the Bye-laws is set out in the circular of the
Company dated 15th July, 2015. An up-to-date memorandum
of association and the Bye-laws is available at the “Corporate
Governance” section of the Company’s website.

During the year under review, all resolutions put forward at the
annual general meeting were conducted by way of poll and poll
results were posted on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange in compliance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules. Details of procedure for conducting a poll
was explained at each general meeting of the Company and
questions from Shareholders regarding the voting procedures
were answered. Notices of not less than 20 clear business days
were sent fo the Shareholders for the annual general meeting of
the Company during the year under review.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholder(s) carrying not less than one-tenth of the total
voting right at general meeting of the Company have the right,
by signed written requisition to the Company’s registered office
and principal place of business in Hong Kong, fo require a
special general meeting to be called for the business specified
in such requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholder(s) carrying not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting right at general meeting or not less than 100 Shareholders
have the following rights by depositing the following documents
at the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong:

(i) not less than six weeks before the annual general meeting,
a signed written request for a proposed resolution (other
than a proposal for election as a director) to be moved at
that meeting; and

(i) not less than one week before the general meeting, a
signed statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to any proposed resolution or business to be dealt with in
that general meeting.

For the above purpose, the Shareholder(s) concerned shall also
deposit with the Company a sum of money reasonably sufficient
to meet the expenses in serving the request/statement to all
Shareholders. Procedures for Shareholder(s) to propose a person
for election as a director of the Company are available at the
"Corporate Governance” section of the Company’s website.

Shareholders who have enquires to the Board may write to

the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

By Order of the Board

Kam Suet Fan
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2016
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The directors have pleasure to present their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The principal activities and particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries and the Group’s principal associates as at
31st March, 2016 are set out in nofes 37 and 17, respectively, to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of the Group’s business, future development, risks
and uncertainties

A review of the Group’s business, an analysis of the Group’s
performance (using financial key performance indicators) and
an indication of likely future development in the Group’s business
are provided in the Financial Highlights on pages 5 and 6 and in
the Chairman’s Statement on pages 7 to 15 of the annual report.
A description of the risks and uncertainties management of the
Group can be found in notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, particulars of important events
of the Group occurred since 31st March, 2016 are set out in the
Chairman’s Statement of the annual report and note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental policies

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company recognises
the importance of good environmental stewardship and
for this purpose, the Company has in place environmental
policy, environmental and natural resources policy and waste
management policy.

The Company is committed to a policy of responsible
environmental management leading to a sustainable use of
resources in building a green environment, promoting energy-
conservation and compliance with the environmental laws,
regulations and codes of practices. It upholds the principles of
waste management and is committed to the proper handling
and disposal of all wastes generated and to minimising the
wastes. Further, it advocates a corporate social responsibility fo
preserve the environment and conserve natural resources that is
important for maintaining the biological diversity in a sustainable
manner for the benefit and enjoyment of the present and future
generation of the community as a whole. Throughout the year
under review, there was no incidence of non-compliance with
the relevant environmental laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong.
During the year, there was no incidence of non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business.

Relationship with employees, customers and suppliers

The Company continues to engage with its employees,
customers and suppliers through different channels to develop
mutually beneficial relationships and promote sustainability.

Employees are remunerated equitably and competitively, and the
Company encourages employees to develop their competencies
and potentials through continuous fraining and development.
The Company is committed to providing and maintaining a safe
and healthy workplace for its employees. The Company also
strives to address the need of customers by providing responsive
and customised services and endeavours to enable suppliers to
participate in our supply chain in a fair equitable, transparent
and competitive manner.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to operating
results for the year ended 31st March, 2016 is set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 50 of the annual report.

The directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.0 cents per share (2015: a final dividend of HK4.0
cents per share, in cash with scrip option) for the year ended
31st March, 2016, which will be payable in cash with an option
to elect scrip dividend of shares to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 24th
August, 2016.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 53 to 55 of the annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st March, 2016, the five largest customers
and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 61% and 48% of the Group’s revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services respectively. The five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the
Group’s purchases.

As at 31st March, 2016, as far as the directors are aware, the
Group, which is a close associate (within the meaning of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”)) of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, and Mr.
Shek Lai Him, Abraham, are interested in 1 share and 2 shares of
Hanny Holdings Limited, a company with its shares listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange respectively, one of the five largest
customers of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the directors are aware, none
of the directors, their close associates (within the meaning of the
Listing Rules) nor those shareholders which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital
have an interest in any of the five largest customers of the Group
for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 135 of
the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in nofe 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of revaluation of and movements in the investment
property of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements. As at 31st March, 2016, the
Group had only one investment property which is situated at No.
1946/50 West Broadway, Vancouver, B.C., Canada for commercial
use and the lease term of such property is freehold.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or a distfribution out of conftributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
its liabilities.

In the opinion of the directors, subject to the restrictions as
stipulated in the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda as described
above, the Company’s reserves available for disfribution to
shareholders as at 31st March, 2016 were as follows:

2NN Al ) § R
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2016 2015

—E-RE —ET—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Contributed surplus BEHEHR 222,435 222,435
Accumulated profits E51m A 838,015 861,070
1,060,450 1,083,505

BORROWINGS

Bank and other borrowings repayable within one year or on
demand are classified as current liabilities. Details of bank and
other borrowings of the Group as at 31st March, 2016 are set out
in note 24 o the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Chairman)
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna

(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine
Chan Fut Yan
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan

Independent non-executive directors:
Chuck, Winston Calptor

Lee Kit Wah

Shek Lai Him, Abraham

In accordance with Bye-law 98(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms.

Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna, Mr. Chan Fut Yan and Mr. Lee Kit Wah

will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

All retiring directors, being eligible for re-election, offer themselves
for re-election.

CEN

AR —FNEEIIZBANEE ZRITREMER
VI SRBEE - BEARER _T—XRF=A
=T BZRITREMEFHBRHINGESTH
R MIEE24 -

=

RERNRBEAREERHIE  ARARIZESMN
™

YTES
RE S (£/5)

Axe
(BIZEREERITE)
P

% 2

R B

BYFHITES:
FRE
T
A1E R

BIEARRNT 2 ARMEIZEI8A) K FEERL -
RABBEERFTHRELETNBEHEZIRER
FRAE LR HBET FBEHAEFHFEERE
1% WREE R ET -

37

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 £ [ $f &




ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # <

KX B ARSI

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE 2R

DIRECTORS (continued)

The independent non-executive directors are appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election, which will run until the
conclusion of the third annual general meeting from the date
of their last re-election and in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws. No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31st March, 2016, the interests and short posifions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"), as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO, or as oftherwise notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares of the issued

Long position/ the Company share capital of

Name of director Capacity Short position held the Company

FREFERAT EERARBE#T

EEnA ) BR/ KRB R&HEE RAEMA B

Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 763,357,578 45.77%
Charles BB A S} (Note)
BR B8 5 (K7at)

Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 260,966,805 15.65%
Charles corporation (Nofe) Sy (Note)
BR B 58 M EHDEE 2 = (Ht7)

(B17t)
Note: Btat -

Galaxyway Investments Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinaview International Limited which was, in turn, wholly-owned by
Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was
deemed fo be inferested in 260,966,805 shares of the Company held
by Galaxyway Investments Limited. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
held 763,357,578 shares of the Company.

Galaxyway Investments LimitedZ&Chinaview
International Limitedz —E2 &M B A& - M
Chinaview International Limited Bl /& Bk B 5& &
T2 EHER o fF &1 1 %% 1E R Galaxyway
Investments Limited P £§ 5 < 260,966,805[% 78 &
AR A = - FREIAE 14565763,357,578
R RIS ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

EERRO -HEROREREEZE
#mRRE (#)

(b) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC
Properties™)

(b) REFHERBMARIA ((EBHHBE] 2
B HEROREEZZ2EERAR

Approximate
Number of percentage
Number of underlying of the
shares of shares of issued share
Long position/ ITC Properties ITC Properties capital of
Name of director Capacity Short position held held ITC Properties
RSB E HEFLE
FiEREEmE Z 1HE BRITRA
EEpn ) wRE/ KA igrig 4=| RGOEE LR SRR e
Chan Kwok Keung,  Inferest of controlled  Long position 289,118,433 - 33.61%
Charles corporation e (Note 1)
ok B8 5 (Note 1) (Krat1)
MNEEHEEZ #a
(Ktit1)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 14,830,752 - 1.73%
Charles E=mHEA A (Note 1)
BRET 58 (Krat1)
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of spouse Long position 209,757,748 - 24.38%
Charles (Note 1) e (Note 1)
BR B 58 fo B # 25 (Kr1at1)
(Hfat1)
Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position 12,952,564 - 1.51%
Rosanna BB A e
Chan Fut Yan Beneficial owner Long posiftion 3,067,122 - 0.35%
BoR 198 2. EnEAA o=y
Chan Fut Yan Beneficial owner Long posiftion - 1,050,000 0.12%
PR {38 E=HEA A (Note 2)
(K1it2)
Chan Yiu Lun, Beneficial owner Long posifion 3,361,321 - 0.39%
Alan E=mHmE A A
PR 2 gt
Shek Lai Him, Beneficial owner Long position 214,118 - 0.02%
Abraham BEmEBA e
FELE
Shek Lai Him, Beneficial owner Long position - 185,000 0.02%
Abraham BEHERA E (Note 2)
PR (K1at2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITC
Properties”) (continued)

Notes:

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company held
289,118,433 shares of ITC Properties. By virtue of his direct and
deemed intferests in approximately 61.42% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st March, 2016. Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in these shares of
ITC Properties held by the indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

Fortune Crystal Holdings Limited, a company indirectly wholly-
owned by Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy (the spouse of Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles), held 209,757,748 shares of ITC Properties. Dr.
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in
these shares of ITC Properties held by Fortune Crystal Holdings
Limited.

Details of outstanding share options (unlisted equity
derivatives) granted to the directors of the Company by ITC

EERRO - HEAROREER 2E
mRRE (#)

(b) REFHEREERAT ((BHHBE]) 2K
7 HEROREER ZERRLR ()

Wit -

1. ARQR—HEEZENBARFABRELE
289,118,433/ i 10 2 #emm o RN T —<
FZA=+—REEEREREREALQR
BEITIRAL61.42% 2 #Es - BRERE 1%
BRERARR—EEEZE2EWBRRMEE
S EEERD R REES -

EBEBRARA R JYH A 2T (PRES
BErEB)ME2EHRAZAR  HEE
BN EE209,757, 748 B 1D 2 #E 25 » RTS8
BLWIREREBILRARQARFEE 2 Z
LEEMERDPHEAELS -

2. RIZE-RE=ZA=+—H EHEHERT
ARRERZHARITEZBBRE GE LMK

Properties as at 31st March, 2016 were as follows: AOTETE)FBWT -

Number of share options Exercise price

BREZE per share of

Outstanding Exercised Outstanding ITC Properties as at

Name of as at during as at 31st March, 2016

Optionholder Date of grant Option period* 1.4.2015 the year 31.3.2016 (subject to adjustments)

R-B-1F RZB-RE BRESBERD

BRE MA-H ZAZt-B  RIE-A¥ZA=t-8

BEARE RiHAH BREANH WATE  FATE HARTE ZOEE(ATHRE)

HKS

#

Chau Mei Wah, 17.10.2013 17.10.2014 10 16.10.2017 550,000 (550,000) - 3.00
Rosanna “E-=F ZE-METATEARZE
X% TATtH “TLETATAR

Chan Fut Yan 17.10.2013 17.10.2014 10 16.10.2017 1,050,000 - 1,050,000 3.00
B2 =% “T-METATLRE
TAtLR “E-LETATAA

Chan Yiu Lun, 17.10.2013 17.10.2014 10 16.10.2017 750,000 (750,000) - 3.00
Alan =% “E-MFEFA+EAZE
BRIBE: TA+LR “E-LETATAA

Shek Lai Him, 17.10.2013 17.10.2014 10 16.10.2017 185,000 - 185,000 3.00
Abraham “E-=F ZE-METATEARZE
RiR TATtH “TLETATAR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC
Properties”) (continued)

* According tfo the terms of grant of options, the above
share options shall be exercisable at any time during the
option period provided that up to a maximum of 50% of
the share options granted shall be exercisable during
the period commencing from 17th October, 2014 to 16th
October, 2015 and the balance of the share options
granted but not yet exercised may be exercised during
the period commencing from 17th October, 2015 fo 16th
October, 2017.

(c) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares

(%)

EERKRO -HEROKREREEZEZE

BmRKRAE

(b) REFHEREAERLT ([EHBE]) 2K
- HAEROREERCEER KA (F)

BERE 2 BIREGR - A -ERE
A A BB A% HR RS (] B R AT E 0
EREEREEARZ00%AIN_E
—mNE+A+tREE-_ZE—H"E+A
FRNBHBATE  mMEGERLE
WMATEZBRER TR -_TE—AF
+A++tHE-_ZT—+F&+HA+~A

HEATTE -

(c) RREKEERLA ([RE]) 2Kk1%D - HEA

and debentures of PYl Corporation Limited (“PYI") ROREBEEEZEZRKRE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Long position/ shares of the issued share
Name of director Capacity Short position PYI held capital of PYI
FRERE HRED BT
EEpg g7 wa/ %A gk 4= BRABNBD L
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 1,305,311,695 28.51%
Charles corporation (Note) Sy
BR B 58 MR EHDEE 2 =
(B17t)
Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 35,936,031 0.79%
Charles BB A Sy
IR B 04
Shek Lai Him, Beneficial owner Long position 6,000 0.00%
Abraham BB A Sy
FEELE
Note: it -

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company held
1.305,311,695 shares of PYIl. By virfue of his direct and deemed
interests in approximately 61.42% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31st March, 2016. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was
deemed to be interested in these shares of PYl held by the indirect

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

AAE—EEEE2EN B 2R R45H51.305,311,695
BRER YD - ERR _T—R"EZA=+—HH
BEEMEREHEBEARRBBEITRALO.42%2
B RERE L WRIERARR —BHEE2E
WBARFMIFEBEZEZERERDTHEEEL -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(d) Interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of Burcon NutraScience Corporation

HEROREER ZE

EK ekt

ERKRM
i R RE(

;
E

(d) ABurcon NutraScience Corporation
(TBurconl) 21~ HERH RERER 2
BERXR

Number of
underlying
shares (in Approximate
respect of the percentage
share options of the
Number of (unlisted equity issued share
shares of derivatives)) capital of
Burcon held of Burcon held Burcon
Fi#Burcon
ZHBER®
(BERBRE {&Burcon
Fi¥sBurcon  (FELWMBRASTE ERITRAE
R EE TAH))%AE BMABEDL
448,634 - 1.25%
- 124,462 0.35%
- 169,462 0.47%

("Burcon”)
Long position/

Name of director Capacity Short position

EEpE 546 BR/ KR

Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position
Rosanna ExEBA HE

EES:

Chau Mei Wah, Beneficial owner Long position
Rosanna ExnBA 595)

ChanYiu Lun, Beneficial owner Long position
Alan EnBEEA 59}

As at 31st March, 2016, ITC Properties, PYl and Burcon were
associated corporations of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was, by virtue of his direct and
deemed intferests in approximately 61.42% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st March, 2016, deemed to be
inferested in the shares and underlying shares (in respect of
equity derivatives), if any, of the associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) of the Company held by the
Group under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2016, none of
the directors and chief executives of the Company had any
intferests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

RIEBE—ARFZA=+—8 " BREZFHFRPEK
PIE+RE2TE @ EIFEHE - REE KBurcon)
RNRBZ AR EE o

EREESEE TN T ANF=-A=1+—HE
TR&%&W’E%&EK RIE BT AN A61.42% 2 1
&= RIBEBERBEEMNE TR - HWRIER
AEEFBEZ2ARRIBEEEZE (EERFESH L
ERBIE+TRI) 2 BRD RBERG (BRERA
PTETERE)(B)FHEE#EZ -

BREXFEREEIN RZE—R"F=-A= +_
H ARAEERFETHRAEREREAR

EREBEE (F& RBHFLBEERNE "Hiﬁﬁ)
25 - ARG ERESFHEREES RS

%?f%fﬁﬂ%ssﬂl BELRARARMEREFELMA
ZAEfEmE FOXR - HIRBRETRIMASRITA

@L"@ﬂ&%%ﬂﬁ*“ﬁﬁZ%m&u\F °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 19th
August, 2011 (the "Share Option Scheme”). No share options
were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year. At
31st March, 2016, there was no outstanding share option granted
by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

At no fime during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which objects are
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the directors, chief executives or their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right fo subscribe for securities of
the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements and the section headed "Connected Transactions”,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation fo the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESSES

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

None of the directors of the Company were interested in any
business apart from the Group’s businesses which compete or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group as at 31st March, 2016.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 14th November, 2014, ITC Management Limited ("ITCM"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement’) with Great
Intelligence Limited ("Great Intelligence”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of ITC Properties, as landlord in respect of the
leasing of portion of 30th Floor and two car parking spaces of
Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong for
a lease term of 3 years commencing from 16th November, 2014
at a fixed rental of HK$217,000 per month and the management
fee and air-conditioning charges of HK$15,870 in aggregate
(subject to adjustments) per month. The aggregate maximum
amount of the rental, management fee and air-conditioning
charges payable by ITCM under the Tenancy Agreement for
current year were not exceeding HK$3.0 million.

BRETE

ARBAR-F——FN\A TN BRABEETES
(I E]) - RERALEBEREERL - 17
- FHEIRE - R _FE-—RF=A=+—H"
BERBBRETSAARRREZHRTRE L
BERHE

RRARHEAEMMBRRRFAEANRESES
BRI R B - B ARRRIEEAHEBEA
RAB AL E R ABEE 2 By REHE 5
(BIEERE) MER - BEE TBTHAERL
BEZEBIRMTN\RZFERFARERE
BREBARRIEZZEN  ETEEMZSE
Rl o

EERRS  RPFAERGHTZR

=

Brir e ISR T35 KX [ B %J-ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ
?&Eﬁ%&l\ CARRRZEFAEMBEREAR
TEEHW%“ﬁﬁ"if;%%ﬁﬁq‘kimﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
RIVEAREEB RS  ZHREZAOTH
BEEXRERBEREARE -

ESRERBRFEE RS
RIE—RF=ZA=+—HB BEARFAEERN

BN B XM B S MR A5 5 SR BE R A R
F2EMER (RNERE 2 EBRRIN) PHRAER -

BERZ

RZZE—WFEF+—A+WMAE - K’\ﬁz—ﬁﬁ
BMEz2ENBRARARHEEEEEARA
([EECETIR]) HEFE 2 — F'EJF'EJTxi
& [} B A RlGreat Intelligence Limited ([ Great
Inteligence]) VERAXX)HEEFAETRER
E125 EBERTTH 03018 2 0 KR EEE AL
R (THEY])  HEHHm=_F—HF+—A
+ﬁEﬁ%%% F - BEEE T A217.000%

ERENZEHEA KT A15870/8 T (A T
Eﬁﬁé)  EECEEBRAFERBHEAOSHENZ
He  EEENMEFHERS D TEE3,000000
BT °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Whilst the terms of the Tenancy Agreement remained unchanged,
the transaction thereunder became a continuing connected
fransaction for the Company because ITC Properties (including
Great Intelligence) became an associate of Dr. Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles ("Dr. Chan”), an executive Director, the Chairman
of the Board and the conftrolling shareholder of the Company
pursuant to Rules 14A.12 and 14A.14 of the Listing Rules following
the acquisition of shares of the Company on 23rd April, 2015
whereby Dr. Chan’s shareholding in the Company increased
fo over 50%. As at 31st March 2016, Great Infelligence was sfill
an associate of Dr. Chan pursuant to Rules 14A.12 and 14A.14
of the Listing Rules. The Tenancy Agreement, which was carried
out on a continuing basis and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company, constituted a confinuing
connected transaction for the Company under Rule 14A.31
of the Listing Rules. Details of the Tenancy Agreement were set
in the announcement of the Company dated 6th May, 2015
(the "Tenancy Announcement”). The total sum paid by the
Group under the Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31st
March, 2016 was approximately HK$2,794,000 and accordingly,
had not exceeded its annual cap disclosed in the Tenancy
Announcement.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed fthe
above continuing connected transaction and confirmed
that such transaction has been entered into by the Group in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on
normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such fransaction on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor of the
Company (the “Auditfor”) had performed review work on the
above continuing connected transaction in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and reported that in
respect of the continuing connected transaction during the year
ended 31st March, 2016 as stated above, (i) nothing has come
to the Audifor’s attention that causes them to believe that the
said continuing connected transaction has not been approved
by the Board; (ii) nothing has come to the Auditor's attention
that causes them to believe that the transaction was not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transaction; and (iii) with respect
to the aggregate amount of the said confinuing connected
tfransaction, nothing has come to the Auditor's attention that
causes them to believe that the said continuing connected
fransaction has exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap
disclosed in the Tenancy Announcement.

BEXS @)

BEHAOBRRERTE BB T 2R H58KR
RARARIHERERS  REREE ETHA
FUAIE R F14A141E R E—RF N A
ZT=HUEBRARRNE  NARITES
EFgrFERIERRERERELS ((FiFELT])
RAR G 2 R ZEHEiR50%  BEE (B
Great Intelligence) K ARIE T 2B A - R
T-RNFZA=+—H8  BRELTHREIFEI4A12
&R E14A1415 » Great Infelligencelld A AR 1E
TIHBMBEA  HORKARBE R —MREBHBIE
HRIRISEEEETT - RIB TR RIZE14A 316 HE
ERARBIZHEBEAERS - FBHNOZFE - &
RARBIBHAZZE—RAFRAANBZAM ([HE
HRm]) - AERERBEZZE—~"F=A=1+—
HiEFERBHEA N 2 2S5 472,794,000%
T AW AEBHEREOAMARE CFE L
MR o

BIUFFRTERCEMN DAKERERS - Wi
REARFCHAEEREARE R —REKBRE
o RIEREEGR  REREEERS 2HH
R AFEEANERRER NG Z HRRA]
ST o

RIE_ETARBIE14A5615 © AN A AL SR ([ 5
f]) BEARBCE B % B I A A AI3000) (1E5]) [ E
SR BERFNRNEHMINNZEER] 2
BEBSAIASEL(EBHA)E740% [ R
& LR FTl S B R E R 5 8% AT ]
BT LMBEBER S 2 BB ITHE - ERz Lt
HE-Z—R"F-A=-t+—BULFEZHERE
RHME  OEBALFNBTMNEHERRS
BELFRFEBERHWRCESTS M (i)
ZEE T AR EHERREEEEERS
ERBEERTELFRBEREB @RS 2 HEH
BMEI G RGDER ERBFEEER S 265
S BT TANECNEHERESHARE L
MPBEAERFEBEARRI BB RMATEE
MNE=mRFE LR -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31st March,
2016, there was no other connected fransaction or continuing
connected transaction of the Company required to be disclosed
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and none of the
related party transactions set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements was required to be disclosed pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31st March, 2016, so far as is known fo the directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

BEXS (@)

BEXEEEN HE-_ZE—XRNEFE=ZA=+—H
IEFE ARRTEEMEER ZRIFEBER
SERE ETRNBIIAZTRE  MEA KR
M FESSETEH 2 BIEA LR S  MEARE LD
HBIFIAZHE -

FERRREAQDARGZEZERAR

RZE—ARF=ZA=1+—8 BARAZEER
TETBRABRAE REEFLRBEGEIF
336MERIF 2 AR R F ML 2 F ERRR
RRR B BB 2 ERIORBWT

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares of the issued

Long position/ the Company share capital

Name Capacity Short position held of the Company

FEFEERAT HEARB#T

wa LB 56 wa/ KA igrig 4=| BRABNBD L

Chan Kwok Keung, Beneficial owner Long position 763,357,578 45.77%
Charles BEmEAA SR (Note)
PR B 58 (Ktaz)

Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 260,966,805 15.65%
Charles corporation (Note) e (Note)
PR B 58 MEEHER 2 = (Bt7z)

(Kt:E)

Chinaview International Interest of controlled Long position 260,966,805 15.65%
Limited corporation (Note) e (Note)
M EHDEE 2 =S (Ktaz)

(Ktat)

Galaxyway Beneficial owner Long posifion 260,966,805 15.65%
Investments Limited EmEAA A (Note)
(Bt7)

Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse Long position 1,024,324,383 61.42%
R (Note) TE (Note)
FoiB s (L) (Bt7z)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

Galaxyway Investments Limited, which held 260,966,805 shares of the
Company, was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinaview International
Limited which was, in turn, wholly-owned by Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy is the spouse of Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.
Chinaview International Limited, Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and Ms.
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy were deemed to be interested in these shares of the
Company held by Galaxyway Investments Limited. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles held 763,357,578 shares of the Company. Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy
was deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Dr.
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as at 31st March, 2016.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set out
in note 31 fo the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the applicable laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed minimum public float under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March, 2016, there was no purchase,

sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of
the Company’s listed securities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

TERRREQD2ARDZEER KRR
(%)

Hitk -

Chinaview International LimitedZ —fE & & i B A &)
Galaxyway Investments Limited?3 5 260,966,8058% A8 2
AIME15  MChinaview International Limited 8! /& B
RELT2EHRB MBI ARERB LRS-
Chinaview International Limited * B B 58 8 £+ & (050
B 2+ B A8 /E R Galaxyway Investments LimitedFff
BEZZEARARARG TP HAEERZ -RERELFE
763,357,578 AR A A IR 1 o {50 A 2 - AR /E R R PR
BBt a 2 ARalRO P HEE#EE -

BREXHBEEEN R_T-AR"F=RA=1—
B RIEEZ MBS GROIE3361F AR A BRTF
B BIEEMALTHAARARRZK

5 RARRAAL D 2 S AR -

3B R 12 R 5t &
AEBRABIE 2 EHBIINGEMBRE
M3 -

BAELEBERE

ARB 2 ARIARRIS B R EEREDIT I EARE
ARBEZEFRUEIIMRERRIZEHENR 2
BABEBER G -

RERE
RAREEAE - REAR TG 2 RARERE

PEBEMAM - RAR—HER EHRRPTET R

REARFTRE -

!

BE HEREEEALQXALHES

Nt

HE-_Z—RF=ZA=1+—HItFE ' KXAAIK
EFEmMBARTBERES  HEXREBERARTZ
FHES -

BREHRER

WEPREECERFTHABHIINGE PR
R MIFE38 ©
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements and the placing
agreement dated 3rd June, 2015 (the “Placing Agreement”)
as disclosed in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 7 to 15 of
the annual report and note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the financial
year under review. The completion of the Placing Agreement was
conditional upon, among other things, the Listing Committee of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange granting or agreeing to grant the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares of the Company
issued under the agreement and the agreement has been
completed on 10th June, 2015.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMIITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The bye-laws of the Company provide that subject to the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), every director
of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. Such provisions
were in force during the course of the financial year ended 31st
March, 2016 and remained in force as of the datfe of this report.
Directors liability insurance is in place to profect the directors of
the Company or of its subsidiaries against any potential costs
and liabilities arising from claims brought against the directors.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general

meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
external auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2016
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED € # & ¥ % B H R & 9 /

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B Y 2 B HRE S

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF ITC CORPORATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
ITC Corporation Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages
50 to 134, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st March, 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a frue and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and fto report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & ¥ % B H R & 3

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MY 2 B HRE S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtfain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intfernal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31st
March, 2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27th June, 2016
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED € # & ¥ % B H R & 9 /

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e BEam Rk EME2EKRAR

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

2016 2015
Notes —E-RE —E—RF
HKS’000 HKS 000
izt FET FEIT
Revenue WA 5 15,027 9,099
Management and other related EIEREAMFRH
service income iGN 3,417 3,418
Interest income 2 WA 9.667 4,336
Property rental income YIRS WA 926 1,031
Other income H 4 A 4,866 912
Net loss on equity investments RN E 2 185 7 (5.106) -
Gain on change in fair value of investment WEMENFEBEE
property 2 Wz 3,327 319
Administrative expenses TE R (57.578) (63.192)
Finance costs B T B AR 8 (194) (486)
Net loss on net decrease in interests in Bt N rlER TR 2
associates B85 9 (3.730) (6,347)
Share of results of associates BB N R EE
- share of results —BhEE 390,271 263,113
- gain on acquisitions of additional — Y g Hse & A mIEE A
interests in associates W 2 Wk 17 90,468 27,424
Profit before taxation R F B A 10 436,334 240,528
Taxation TiIa 11 (416) (40)
Profit for the year ANEF A 435,918 240,488
Other comprehensive (expenses) Hihz2mE (FAX) WA :
income:
Items that may be reclassified HEnE#F 7 B2 Em
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEA
Exchange differences arising on franslation & /GINEFREEE 2
of foreign operations ME =5 (528) (3.335)
Share of other comprehensive expenses of B (hEE N e HAn
associates ZHERMEZ (49.209) (10,410)
Reclassification adjustment on reserves B N B R R D B
released on net decrease in interests in HHHEEZ
associates EH DB 57 9,014
Items that will not be reclassified REHIEETSEE
subsequently to profit or lo0ss: Eaml HH -
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings HE T REF WS 539 140
Share of other comprehensive expenses of B(hE e QR HAD
associates 2HEMX (49.949) (144,598)
Deferred tax arising on revaluation of land HhTHEEFES
and buildings ZIRFER I 67) a7
Other comprehensive expenses for the year ~ ANFEHEAMEEFH (99.157) (149,206)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEEB AL 336,761 91,282
HK cents HK cents
Earnings per share FHRAE 13
Basic - PIN 27.70 18.09
Diluted s N/A N/A

N\
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & ¥ % B H R & 3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB KRR X

At 31st March, 2016 R=F—NF=H=+—H

2016 2015
Notes —E—-XE — TR
HK$°'000 HKS 000
Kzt FAETT FETT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - RE Rk 14 7.229 5,860
Investment property PE=EES 15 21,966 18,759
Intangible assets EEE 16 1,120 1,189
Interests in associates /N 2 17 3,054,405 2,642,274
Equity investments RN E 18 40,600 =
3,125,320 2,668,082
Current assets REEE
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEWERTR « 5] RIBN IR 19 266,264 16,112
Amounts due from associates JE Wi B i R B OB 35(b) 1,691 2,712
Loans receivable JEUE X 20 110,000 =
Promissory note receivable JFEWUEAT =15 2] - 300,000
Equity investments BRI E 18 50,830 =
Short-term bank deposits, bank balances 52 EiSR1T1F R ~ RITLHETF
and cash NIR&E 22 51,886 138,691
480,671 457,515
Current liabilities RBEE
Creditors and accrued expenses FE R R BT X 23 8,483 6,821
Bank overdrafts RITEX 24 61,918 9,997
70,401 16,818
Net current assets REBEEFE 410,270 440,697
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 3,535,590 3,108,779
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED 52 # & ¥ % B H R & 3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB KRR X

At 31st March, 2016 R=F—NF=H=+—H

2016 2015
Notes —E—-XE —E—hEF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
izt FET FHEIT
Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELETIRE & 25 1,727 1,244
Net assets BEERE 3,533,863 3,107,535
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital &7 26 16,677 14,338
Share premium and reserves I8 A5 (B M 3,517,186 3,093,197
Total equity R 3,533,863 3,107,535

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 134 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
27th June, 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

PR B 38 BAx#E
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
FE B FERE FEIETE

BNFOAERIUMAZEAMBRREN _-F
—RNERAZtEBEBEFERERRETE

FTHTHNEETRKREZTERE -

Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna

N
Z
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & ¥ % HR & 3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REE@ ® B R

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 &% —F—#=H=+—HIFE

Attributable fo owners of the Company

KNARAARL
Reserve  Capital Property  Investment
Share Share  Contributed on redemption Other  revaluation  revaluation  Translation Accumulated
capifal - premium surplus  acaquisition reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
fius {2 NXER  REEf

R%  RHEE  REBE  UREE B EfRE i B EXRE BN &i
HS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKS'000

Tt TEr 7B TEr  TEx TRt TEr  TEr TEr TEn T

(Notea) — (Nofeb) (Note )
Wia) (W) (W)

At Tst April, 2014 NZE-RERA-A 12702 730,059 196,676 (24.996) 908 8,351 2647 65,760 133519 1911,979 3,037,605
Proft for the year REEET - - - - - - - - - s 24048
Exchonge differences arising on franslafion 85 % BEE 7

of foreign operaions Eiz8 - - - - - - - - (3.3%) - (33%)
Share of other comprehensive expenses of - B{EBENFIEf

sscites 2EEY - - - . - . Sooumy (o4 S0
Resenves released on nef decrease BEDAERER)/ e

in/disposal of nferests i associotes il - - - 3 - - - 603 4,408 - 9014
Gain on revaluation of lond and buidings ~ EfTHREF K% - - - - - - 140 - - 140
Deferred fox arsing on revaluafion of lond ~ Bt REFEEZ

ond buidings EiLHA - - - - - - () - - - ()
Total comprehensive income (evpenses)  AFERAMA

forthe year (7%)48 - - - 3 - - 13 (14399%) (37 21048 91,282
Isue of shares Efikh

- sorp dividend -HRRE 1,636 9861 - - - - - - - - %6497
Transacfion costs on isue of shares L PR G - (108) - - - - - - - - (108)
Dividend poid (Note 12) BARE (Hih2) - () - - - - - - - () (130897)
Decreose in associates’ equy ofirbuteble  BRBEATZRAR5EY

fo the Group's inferests arising on REERBEDARERR

equiy fransacfions ofthe ossaciates B&AD - - - - - 13544 - - - (389) 13,15
At 31st March, 2015 RIF-1F=f=1-H 14338 7128315 196,676 (24.993) 908 21.8% 2710 (78.235) 128182 2117619 3,107,535
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & ¥ % FHR &3 /

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A E@ ® B R

For fhe year ended 37sf March, 2016 gi2=—F—~NF=H=1—HIFZF

Attributable fo owners of the Company

LGN
Reseve  Capital Property  Investment
Share Share  Contributed on redemption Other  revaluation  revaluation  Translation Accumulated
capital ~ premium surplus  acaquisition reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RA&E NEER  REEf

Rs  RHER  REBE  UREE B EfRk i B EXRE  EHH &t
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000

Tt TEr TR TEx TEr Tt TEn TEr TEr TR i

(Notea) — (Nofeb) (Note c)
(Hista) (Wit (ke

At Tst April, 2015 NZE-RERA-A 14,338 728,315 196,676 (24.993) 908 21,89 2710 (78,285) 128182 2117619 3,107,535
Profifor the year KEEAT - - - - - - - - - 13918 135918
Eichange difierences arising on franslafion 5% £KEE 2

of foreign operaions EXZE - - - - - - - - (528) - (526)
Share of other comprehensie expenses  BEBEDFL(

of ssociofes 2ERX - - - - - - - (99 (w29 - (99.158)
Share of ranster upon disposal offinancial - #(E—FRED TR HEE KR

ossefs designated as ot fair value: BATERAEB2ERA

through ofher comprehensive income of ~ A2 BEEZ ER

an associote - - - - - - - kYl - (391)
Resenves released on net deceaseln  BERFERTHIE

inteests in associofes %ﬁﬁ - - - 1 - - - 55 5 (555) 5
Gain on revaluafion of land and buidings Bt REF 2 M - - - - - - 5% - - - 5%
Deferred fox arising on revaluafion of lond ~ EffHREFEEZ

and buldings EEHB - - - - - - () - - - ()
Total comprehensive income (evpenses)  AEE2EMA

forthe year ()48 - - - I - - M (o0 o) M 376
Issue of shares Eilkh

- on plocing of shores -RERR 100 104400 - - - - - - - - I05600

- scrip dividend -HRAE 119 73920 - - - - - - - - 75,059
Transacion costs on issue of shares iRz R AmA - 28 - - - - - - - - (2817)
Dividend paid (Note 12) ﬁﬁxﬁ (i) - (715.059) - - - - - - - (19633)  (04692)
Decrease in associates’ equiy affibutoble  RREEAT 2 RAR HEH

fothe Group's inferests rising on equity 71V§ ERBENARERG

Hransacfions of the associafes EaR) - - - - - 865 - - - 5,55 6411
At 315t March, 2016 RZF-AEZA=1-H 16677 828,765 196,676 (24992) 908 2,750 3202 (121,238) 78501 2,538,574 3,633,863
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # <

%X B AR I

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

==

For fhe year ended 37sf March, 2016 &i2=—F—~NF=H=1—HIFZF

SR ERD S

Notes:

(@

(®)

©

The contributed surplus of the Group comprises the difference
between the nominal amount of the ordinary share capital issued
by the Company in exchange for the nominal amount of the
share capital of a subsidiary acquired pursuant to a corporate
reorganisation on 24th January, 1992 and the credits arising from
the changes in the capital and reserves of the Company in capital
reorganisations and the transfers to the accumulated profits for
offsetting the loss on distribution of assets to shareholders as
approved by the Board of Directors.

The reserve on acquisition represents the amount of fair value
changes shared by the Group in relation to the acquisition of
additional interest in a subsidiary by an associate.

Included in the balance as at 31st March, 2016 is the Group’s share
of reserves of its associates, representing share of the statutory
reserve of subsidiaries incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") of an associate standing to the credit of
HK$22,750,000 (2015: HK$21,895,000).

The PRC statutory reserve is required by the relevant laws in the
PRC applicable to the entities incorporated in the PRC, whereas
the allocation to which is mandatory at certain rates of profit after
taxation of the relevant entities prepared under the PRC Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles until the balance of the reserve
reaches certain levels of the contributed capital of the relevant
entitfies.

When an associate of the Group increases its inferest in an entity
that is already controlled by the associate, it is accounted for as
equity transaction by the associate. The carrying amounts of the
equity attributable to the owners of the associate and its non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in that entity. The difference between the amount
by which the relevant non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid by the associate is recognised
directly in the equity of the associate.

(@

(©)

©

Wiz
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&S 45 T 8 A R AT AN 2 B o
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED € # & ¥ % B H R & 9 /

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e BRI ME X

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

2016 2015
Note —E-RE¥ —ZE-0F
HKS’000 HKS 000
i3 FET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit before taxation B T3¢ A& A 436,334 240,528
Adjustments for: EARE 5 S IBEL A% -
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EE 69 146
Depreciation of property, plant and M  BELEEEZ
equipment e 1,277 1,070
Gain on change in fair value of KEMENTER
investment property gz = (3.327) (319)
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEWE  BEREHEZ
equipment g (525) (270)
Interest income FEWA (9.667) (4,336)
Interest expenses B 194 486
Net loss on equity investments 1A 2 B8R 5,106 -
Net loss on net decrease in interests in B N RERIFR A 2
associates [E1E 55 3,730 6.347
Share of results of associates 2 NI (480,739) (290,537)
Unrealised exchange gain on earnest money  ARZIRIE 7 = & Wk (4.010) -
Allowance recognised for debtors, deposits B 52 2 FEUBRZN «
and prepayments A& RIEMFIE 2 B - 400
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERFEECEE - 306
Operating cash flows before movements in LEECRBH I REER
working capital ReEn= (51,558) (46,179)
Increase in debtors, deposits and JEUWERTR « sl &
prepayments TE ST FRIE L AN (9.980) (3.144)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from JE LA EsE 1 R RRIE
associates A (38hn) 1,021 (855)
Increase in loans receivable JE W B SR A (110,000) -
Increase in equity investments eI AL AN (61,023) -
Increase (decrease) in creditors and FERTBR R R FERT R
accrued expenses #in Ofid) 1,684 (20,096)
Cash used in operations REXBBRARE (229.856) (70,274)
Dividends received from equity investments BWEREERE 210 =
Dividends received from associates B R R R 11,484 41,206
Interest received B2 IAE 11,554 226
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REEKEH 2
ACTIVITIES REFHE (206,608) (28,842)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEK
Payment of earnest money WEEHNIE 19 (238,059) -
Acquisition of additional interests in associates U BEE & A &) FBIME RS (39.296) (53,741)
Acquisition of equity investments WIS E (35.723) -
Additions to property, plant and equipment  AREWE - BE M EE (2.615) (2,562)
Repayment of promissory note receivable EEREWBFEH RE 300,000 =
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEWE  BERRE
and equipment FTiS 708 641 293
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — M2 R R TS RIE - 299,293
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REX®E (BH) Bz
INVESTING ACTIVITIES H&FE (15,052) 243,283

N\
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & ¥ % B H R & 3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e BRI ME X

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 2 —F— = A=+—HI F)E

2016 2015
—B-AF —F FF
HK$°'000 HK$ 000
FET FEr

FINANCING ACTIVITIES REER
Proceeds from placing of shares e & R& 1D P15 K18 105,600 =
Dividends paid EfIRE (19.633) (34,400)
Transaction costs on issue of shares BITRMD 2 R B A (2.811) (108)
Interest paid ETHE (194) (1,019)
Repayment of margin account payable EEENRESKRPKE - (19,063)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING RMEXKRE (BH) 2

ACTIVITIES ReFE 82,962 (54,590)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND HReHBEELZEER (F2)

CASH EQUIVALENTS EInFEEE (138,698) 159,851
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AAREHERESEE

BROUGHT FORWARD HE 128,694 (30,927)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE INEERBE

CHANGES =4 (28) (230)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED HEESHERSEE

FORWARD HA (10,032) 128,694
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReHBSEHEER

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RO
Short-term bank deposits, bank balances and MHARITIE R IR1TET

cash MIRE 51,886 138,691
Bank overdrafts RITHEX (61.918) (9.997)

(10,032) 128,694
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED 52 # & ¥ % B H R & 3 /

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ
1.

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “"Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of this
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
and the Group’s principal associates are set out in notes 37
and 17, respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
fime, the following new amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institfute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") that are relevant for the preparation of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Conftributions
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

The application of the new amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts
reported and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ®w R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 %t_—t_ =3
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Confracts
with Customers!

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable

and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Confribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation
Exception?

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations?

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers!’

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer
1st January, 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer
1st January, 2016

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer
1st January, 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB W& M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS @ issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets
and was early adopted by the Group with a date of initial
application on Tst April, 2014. HKFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedging accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include (a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and (b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” ("FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debft instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014), other than those
relating to classification and measurement of financial
assets covered in HKFRS 9 (2009) which has been early
adopted by the Group, are described as follows:

o In addition to the requirements of HKFRS 9 (2009),
debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contfractual cash flows and selling assets, and that
have contracted terms of the financial asset that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount of outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable fo changes in the financial liabilities” credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified fo profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as FVTPL
was presented in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For fhe year ended 31st March, 2016 %é_—t_ =

L L

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) “Financial Instruments” (continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced fo the types of
fransactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been infroduced.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9
(2014) in the future (excluding the scope of HKFRS 9 (2009)
that has been adopted by the Group with a date of initial
application on 1st April, 2014) may have impact on the

—NFZA=F—HIFFE

amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s financial
assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been

completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB W& M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities fo use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 "Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Confracts” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the fransfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specially, HKFRS 15
infroduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

0 Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is fransferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added to HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 15 until a detailed review has been
completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases”, infroduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS
16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the
lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of
the lease liability info a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the consolidated statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are inifially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional periods
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting freatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases
as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for
those two types of leases differently.

The directors of the Company will assess the impact of
the application of HKFRS 16. For the moment, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of the application of HKFRS 16 until the Group performs a
detailed review.

Other than the above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB W& M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(the ‘“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market partficipants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristic of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in the consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment®, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 ‘“Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 ‘“Inventfories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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For fhe year ended 31st March, 2016 %é_—t_ 23
3.

L L

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

J Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when
the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB W R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 é:tt_—t_ =
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (confinued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All infragroup
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating fo transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in an existing
subsidiary that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling inferests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or fransferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
(2009). when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate.
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For fhe year ended 31st March, 2016 %é_—t_ 23
3.

Bt %% 3, K MG

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than land and
buildings, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values af the end of
the reporting period.

Any revaluation increases arising on revaluation of land
and buildings are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease
in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset
is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, on the property revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of the same asset. On
the subsequent sale or refirement of a revalued assef,
the attributable revaluation surplus is fransferred to
accumulated profits.

No depreciation is provided in respect of freehold land.

Depreciation is recognised so as fo write off the cost or
fair value of items of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any differences
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item at the date of transfer are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be fransferred
directly to accumulated profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB W& M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (confinued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no fufure economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight line basis over the lease terms.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease af the inception of the lease.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is released over the lease terms on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly atftributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB W& M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The associate uses
accounting policies that differ from those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Appropriate adjustments have been made to conform
the associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising ifs
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

An investment in an associafe is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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3.

L L

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates (confinued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with HKFRS
9 (2009). The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon
such changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB W R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 é:tt_—t_ =
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates (confinued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
that are not related to the Group.

Acquisition or deemed acquisition of additional interests
in associates

On acquisition or deemed acquisition of additional interests
in associates, any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of that associate attributable fo the additional
interests obtained is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities aftributable to the
additional interests obtained over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Disposal or deemed disposal of partial interests in
associates

On disposal or deemed disposal of partial interests
in associates without losing significant influence, the
difference between the carrying values of the underlying
assets and liabilities attributable to the interests disposed
of, or deemed to be disposed of and the consideration
received, if any, is credited or charged to the profit or
loss as gain/loss on disposal or deemed disposal of
interests in associates. In addition, the Group reclassifies
to profit or loss in relation to the partial interests disposed
of a proportionate amount of the gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effective
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and infangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the
asset is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
atftributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assefts and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

On initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets
as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on its business model for managing the
financial assets and contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 é:tt_-t_ FE—NF=HA=1—HIFF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. SEBE (&)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ERIA(E&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Debt instruments and hybrid contracts that meet the
following conditions are subsequently measured af
amortised cost less impairment loss:

. the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assetfts in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised
cost. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL,
unless the Group designates such investment that is not
held for trading as FVTOCI on initial recognition.

A financial asset is held for trading if it has been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term or
it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument. Debt instruments that do not meet the
amortised cost criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL.
In addition, debft instruments that meet the amortised cost
criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at
FVTPL. A debt instrument may be designated as at FVTPL
upon inifial recognition if such designation eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL on initial application of HKFRS 9.

Financial assets at FVIPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss is included in
other gains and losses.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation
at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
tfrading.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve.

TEEFHEE)

E@MIE(E)
THEE (&)
B FEEAABERS S CHEE

RETARBWRSBRERAFEEFAR
& BRFAEREEEALIFFIFEELRER
BRERRRATVEESARMCEELA -

HWEEEREER T ZBNEFERBAH
ER/ITETABIEEEERRBE T
EMemEE  AIERERBEEEERSE -
BEHFTAIERAEHRE(R LT
BAFEEFARSE - W EHTATE
PRAE IR - BRIEE RIRAFEEFTA
B AR ARV EESARRTE - B
TAAUERERREERAFEEFAR
a7 (W RZIEE A BB KB E R DR TR
MERTEEER R BHEAEKRSEMIBL
ZA—HE) - EEREREEMBREE
AIESRY - AEBE Y EBEMBEEBH LA
BAFEESFARD -

REERSHRRATFEEFABRZ SR
BERNVEEFE BENAEMELZ
EA R EEN RS ER - N8P E
RZFWAEIERIIFT AR =S R ER
A o

B FEEFAREMEZENAZ 2 BEE

RERERE  AKEAETAHEEE
(ZE—EETAER)  EENERTA
FHIRERRATFEESALMEZEBRA -
HERRESHEFEERSE  RERES
IREERBEAFEEFAELEZEEA -

BATFEEFAEMEERANER T AR
BB AFEENLERSRAEERE
HERAFEEAE  MATFEEZSME
Fr e R ERR E M 2R AR ERER
BRESHEHBR -

75

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 £ [£ $f % \



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED € # & ¥ % B H R & 9 /

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB W R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 é:tt_—t_ =
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTOCI (continued)

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s rights to
receive the dividends is established in accordance with
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends
earned are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVIPL and FVTOCI,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

. breach of confract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment losses of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of frade debtors, amounts due from associates
and promissory note receivable, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a balance
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instfrument is any confract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised atf the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (confinued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
inferest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities (including trade and other
creditors and bank overdrafts) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a fransferred financial asset, the
Group confinues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for a
financial asset that is classified as at FVTOCI, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
reserve is recognised in profit or loss. On derecognition of a
financial asset that is classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
tfransferred to accumulated profits.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its fangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indicatfion exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit ("CGU") to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocafion can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the impairment loss
is freated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased fo
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for services provided in the normal course of business, net
of discounts and sales related taxes.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s rights to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing above.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (confinued)

Exchange differences arising on the settflement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the refranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the refranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated intfo the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing confrol over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-confrolling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and if further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of faxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be ufilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
fransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assetfs is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (confinued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, af the end of the
reporting period, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred ftax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutfted. The
presumption is rebutfed when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 ‘Income
Taxes” (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the
properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans/
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the confributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
constfruction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets unfil such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their infended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & ¥ % B H R & 3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B OB W& M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ
4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

Interests in associates

The Group’s interests in associates are carried at share of
net assets of associates together with goodwill which arose
on their acquisition. As at 31st March, 2016, the carrying
value of the Group’s interests in certain listed associates
in Hong Kong exceeded the market value of the Group’s
holding therein by an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1,912 million (2015: HK$1,396 million). Management has
assessed the recoverable amounts of the Group’s infterest in
associates. This assessment involves significant assumptions
about fair value of the underlying assets and liabilities of
the associates and market conditions that the amount can
be realised may be different as projected if and when the
Group is to dispose of this interest.

For acquisition of additional interests in associates, any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identified assets and liabilities attributable to the additional
interests obtained over the cost of acquisition is calculated
using fair value information of the net identifiable assets
and liabilities at the dates the additional interests are
acquired, and are recognised, after assessment, in profit
or loss. The fair value informatfion of the net identifiable
assets and liabilities involves significant assumptions about
fair value of the underlying assets and liabilities of the
associates.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an assetf, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages an
independent qualified professional valuer to perform the
valuation. Management of the Company works closely with
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
which are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.
Notes 15 and 29(c) provide detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair values of various assets.

4.

EXEH AT RAE #)

BEQARES

AEBRBERRI2ES DA EHE R
RIEEFEMBBIEEEENE N2
—NFZA=t—H AEERETESRS
FzBE AR ESZ EERERL AL
BB ZHES £41,912,000,0008 T (= F
— A4 : 1,396,000,000/ 7T) ° & HEE D
HAEERBEE AR 2R Al KBS -
ESREEEBEAREBEERBEAT
BEEKTHERRZEREBR  WEAERE T

LUK EB RSN 2 AR 2 IMER T F - AT
g AEERGEZEIHNEERBEZR
FEEFEBLREXNAZERIRKEBER
SMERE AR BRI EERBBEFELATE
BEHFTE  YRIBEHR - IBMNEER
BEFEZAFEEENSIRZBERRZ
BERABFRZAFTEEZERRR -

AFPEEFAERGERRF

BT TS - AEEBHEENAFE
B -

WEFTEEZ A FEER  AEEEENA
ABEMSEHE - MELZREE1RE AR
B AEERZEB LS ERIXMGEME
ThE - ARREREERGEMERSE
VASLET & 3 0 b (B el S AR 2L 10 8y A\ B -

REEFANGEERMTEEALIERET S
HEBRMENRASEGE THENSR
TEMATFEE- - MFE15KR29(c)REEE]
ZIEEERNTFEERERNGERN - &
ABBEREZEBRZHNFRER -
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED 52 # & ¥ % B H R & 3 /

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ®w R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 ét_-t_z —NF=HA=1—HIFE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5. KARZHBER

WARAFEEREINEP 2 BB YR
B AREERFERAZINAOT :

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
from outside customers for the year. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

2016 2015
—AE —T—AF
HK$’000 HKS 000
FETT FEIT
Management and other related EEREMERH

service income i e N 3,417 3,418
Interest income from provision of finance & B R HERLE 2 Fl B UL A 9,667 4,336
Property rental income IELERAON 926 1,031
Gain on disposal of equity investments &R E 2 Wi 483 =
Dividend income from equity investments 2R Bz & 2 fx S WA 210 =
Others HAh 324 314
15,027 9,099

Segment information o =& ¥
The Group’s operating segments, based on information BEZ2HTFTETELSERFTALT(BIRAAFZ

WITER) UEERIPERKRRAGREZ
AR AEEZREHHMT :

reported to the chief operating decision maker, being the
Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment are as

follows:

Finance - loan financing services & - BEXRERY

Long-term investment - investments including convertible EHIZE - KEEHBREKES
notes issued by the associates UNGICEE A=l B8
and other long-term equity EERHEMEE
investments HEmIgE

Other investment - investment in other financial HEmEE - BERHMWE@REE
assets and trading of securities BEET

Others - leasing of investment property, H b - BEYERE -

HAETE R E RS

leasing of motor vehicles and
management services

*ﬁfﬁiﬂlﬁ%%*é’ Bz ER - H

) TARAKER]
2EWZOM 2HWAT ©

Information regarding the above operating segments,
which are also reportable segments of the Group, is

reported below.
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # & % % HR & 3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB WK K

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5.

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by operating and reportable segment:

For the year ended 31st March, 2016

5. KARDHESR (&)

DEER(E)

AT AAEERZ WA REEREE R 25

D ERE D 2 AT

BE-ZE—A"FE=A=+—HLEE

Long-term Other Segment
Finance investment investment Others total  Eliminations Consolidated
BE RERE HuRE Htt R4 i &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS’ 000 HKS' 000
FAT FAET FET FET FET FET FET
SEGMENT REVENUE 2HBA
External sales HIMEE 9,485 - 693 4,849 15,027 - 15,027
Infer-segment sales DHEHE 3,979 - - - 3,979 (3.979) -
Total @t 13,464 - 693 4,849 19,006 (3.979) 15,027
RESULT EY
Segment result PHEE 13,266 4,730 (9.983) 4,037 12,050 - 12,050
Cenfral administration costs A {THBK AR (52,531)
Finance costs HBHA (194)
Net loss on net decreasein -~ —fAEA A AR ZFH D
interest in an associate LEREE (3,730)
Share of resulfs of associates  EEEHZ N A EE
- share of resulfs —Bh%5E 390,271
- gain on acaquisitions of LN
additional interests BMELR 2 Wi
in associates 90,468
Profit before taxation BRE A& H

436,334
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. IWARDEBEFR (&)

(continued)
Segment information (continued) DEER (E)
For the year ended 31st March, 2015 HE—_ T —FRE=B=+—HIEE
Long-ferm Segment
Finance investment Others total  Eliminations  Consolidated
e RERE £ty Azt i e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TET TET TEL
SEGMENT REVENUE ik L/ ON
External sales HINHE 4110 - 4,989 9,099 - 9,099
Infer-segment sales PHEHE 3,720 - - 3,720 (3,720) -
Total @it 7,830 - 4,989 12,819 (3,720) 9,099
RESULT X5
Segment result GEES 7,583 (86) 218 7.715 - 7715
Central administration costs RRITHAA (50,891)
Finance costs HBHA (486)
Net loss on net decrease in e DA ER TR D
interests in associates LEBEE (6,347)
Share of results of associates BEHERRRE
- share of resulfs —#h%xE 263,113
- gain on acquisitions of KB RHEE A
additional inferest in an EIMER 2 W&
associate 27,424
Profit before taxation Bt AT & A 240,528
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates SERRSYE TR BT B IR E AT K E
or at terms determined and agreed by both parties. B 7 &R ER -
Segment result represents the result of each segment DEMREGELE R S ER S BAE L MER SRR A R T
without allocation of central administration costs, including A (BEESHH) « BERKARER
directors’ salaries, finance costs and items related to MU NRIEREBEZER - REE—_Z—F
interests in associates. During the year ended 31st March, F=ZA=+—HILEE BB EH I &
2015, there was no activity in the other investment segment. RS H) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK K

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. IWARDEBER (&)

(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities THEEREE
As at 31st March, 2016 R-ZE-—R"E=HA=+—H
Long-term Other Segment
Finance  investment  investment Others total  Unallocated Total
BE RERE  HitRE Bt AHEH KR g4
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS' 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
fén fEr FET FEr FEr TEn FEr
SEGMENT ASSETS ’J}%BEE
Segment assets PHEE 112,223 40,600 50,835 23,704 227,362 - 227,362
Inferests in associates BENAES - - - - - 3,054,405 3,054,405
Unallocated corporate assefs ANELRFEE - - - - - 324224 324,224
Total assefs BEE 112,223 40,600 50,835 23,704 227,362 3,378,629 3,605,991
As at 31st March, 2015 RZE—hAF=A=+—H
Long-term Other Segment
fFinance investment  investment Others fotal  Unallocated Total
BE RERE  HtRE At AHEH AR 8
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
TAT TET TA7 AT AT AT AT
SEGMENT ASSETS ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
Segment assets PHEE 300,000 - 10 19,901 319.91 - 31991
Inferests in associates BENTER - - - - - 2682274 2642274
Unallocated corporate assets RABRZLREE - - - - - 163,412 163,412
Total assefs ZEE 300,000 - 10 19,901 319911 2805686 3,125,597
For the purposes of moniforing segment performance and BEEmASMRENEZSDIBEAOEER :

allocating resources among segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segment other . FEBREESMARL S  ~aiE
than interests in associates, intangible assetfs, short- B &%\ TIREZS - EEE)}/QF SEERSR TR
term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, certain o MTEELRES  ETYWE  BE
property, plant and equipment, certain debtors and NEE . ETREIWEES R TENZIE - A
prepayments, and amounts due from associates. &FEJ%ZH@‘“AA HIE o

no segment liabilities information is provided as no
such information is regularly provided to the chief

HROHMAEERRBEEERTTAE

operating decision maker of the Group on making BEBEERRAERANERDE
decision for resources allocation and performance REFBRERZRR - BULABRILE
assessment. #t e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. IWARDEBEFR (&)

(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) THEENREBE (&)
Interest income was allocated to segments. However, the MBEUWAEETADE - HEMEEEERITER
related short-term bank deposits and bank balances are RETEGYERNAEFEFELEREAS
not reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker MADIEE - WITNERTAEFEFELE
as part of segment assets. This is the measure reported BARABANEB RSB ERRIAVGEAHERZEHE
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the HAEo
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
Other information H i g xR
For the year ended 31st March, 2016 BE-—E—ANE=-ZA=+—HLEE
Long-term Other
Finance investment investment Others Total
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HKS$’ 000 HKS$’ 000
A% FAT FAT FA% FA%
Amounts included in the SENBEERE
measurement of B HE
segment result:
Interest income EVON 9,485 - - 182 9,667
Gain on change in fair value of RENEATEE
investment property 28 Wn - - - 3,327 3,327
Net loss on equify investments &% 8 7 1B 54 - 4,877 (9.983) - (5,1006)
For the year ended 31st March, 2015 HE-_S—FHE=A=+—HIt&EE
Long-term Other
Finance investment investment Others Total
mE REARE A RE Hith @5t
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FiA7 A7 A7 A7 A7
Amounts included in the RN BEER
measurement of BIE 2 HE
segment result:
Interest income MEBA 4110 - - 226 4,336
Gain on change in fairvalue ~ REAMEAFEE
of investment property 28 Win - - - 319 319
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB W R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 %é_—t_ =

—NFZA=F—HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WAKRZEESR (&)
(continued)
Geographical information ih = & K
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and NEB 7 XEBUREBEBRINEK ©
Canada.
Information about the Group’s revenue from external NEBRKBEINEP SR FHEHF 2 AER
customers or counterparties is presented based on the DIEETR G 2B EE D - AEEIER
locations of transactions conducted. Information about BEE (BMEARERGIN BRI TIIREE
the Group’s non-current assets (other than inferests in HWIENEE D  AEEABEBMEARERS
associates) is presented based on the geographical BR TR S AR LB E 5 o
locations of the assetfs. Information about the Group’s
interests in associates is presented based on the places of
listing of the associates.
Carrying amount of
Revenue non-current assets (Nofe)
A FRBEEREE (HiZ)
2016 2015 2016 2015
—REF —ZE-hF —B-R¥ —ZE—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FrET FET FET TET
Hong Kong B 10,677 4,637 3,059,855 2,646,485
Canada mEXR 4,350 4,462 24,865 21,597
15,027 9.099 3,084,720 2,668,082

Note: Non-current assets exclude financial assets.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31st March, 2016, a customer of the
Finance segment accounted for approximately 48% (2015:
45%) of the Group's total revenue.

Major revenue by services and investments

The Group’s major revenue by services and investments was
disclosed in the segment revenue above.

Wit RBEETBRIESREE -
EBEXEEF2ER
BE_Z—NF=ZA=+—HILFE —4&
MEDBHNRLIEAREB BRI A L48% (=
T— R 45%) °
REBRBREBEZETEKRA

AEE R ARG RIRE 2 TERAR L5
B AR E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ
6. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 6. EE - FTETBHAERANVNESH

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EEME
EMPLOYEES
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors ENRENTEESEEFETHAE ZHE
and the chief executive were as follows: wmr
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM <
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Discretionary
Fees benefits contributions bonus Total
20 )3 BAREF
e HingFl B Mg A @t
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEx FE% FEx FEX FEx
2016 “E-5E
Executive directors: HITEE
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (e 10 3,840 384 15,000 19,234
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna EEE= 10 3,840 384 4,500 8,734
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine BRE & 10 2,280 114 1,500 3,904
Chan Fut Yon BREHE 10 600 60 - 670
Chan Yiu Lun, Alon PRk 10 2,640 18 3,500 6,168
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE -
directors:
Chuck, Winston Calptor EE 200 - - - 200
Lee Kit Wah FhE 200 - - - 200
Shek Lai Him, Abraham AigH® 200 - - - 200
Total @it 650 13,200 960 24,500 39,310
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # & % % HR & 3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK K

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ

6. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 6. E
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 1=
EMPLOYEES (continued)

ECFETHRAEBRANBSH
EME &

(a) Directors’” emoluments (continued) (o) EEM 2 (&)
Refirement
Salaries benefit
and ofher scheme Discretionary
Fees benefifs confributions bonus Total
e RIRRER
ek B AT Bl B @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TETL TEL TEL
2015 —5-1%
Executive directors: HITEE -
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles PR Bl 58 10 3,840 384 15,000 19,234
Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna EEE= 10 3,840 384 4,500 8,734
Chan Kwok Chuen, Augustine PRl 10 2,160 108 1,500 3,778
Chan Fut Yon B2 10 600 60 - 670
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan [ 10 2,160 18 3,500 5,688
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors:
Chuck, Winston Calptor BE 200 - - - 200
Lee Kit Woh FHRE 200 - - - 200
Shek Lai Him, Abraham hig# 200 - - - 200
Tofal @t 650 12,600 954 24,500 38,704
Ms. Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna is also the chief executive BEELZLTNALRATEFTETHAE -
of the Company and her emoluments disclosed above X EZMEE BREUETETRA
include those for services rendered by her as the chief EEMREHREZME -
executive.
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above EYRIRZHTEEME T EAMESE
were mainly for their services in connection with the EIEAANTRERBAT ZEHTIEME
management of the affairs of the Company and its ZIRBEMIELY - EXFAIRZIEHNITES
subsidiaries. The non-executive directors’ emoluments MeFrEARBELERNATESAE
shown above were mainly for their services as directors HZIREmMIEL °

of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

6. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 6.

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b) Five highest paid employees

PAID

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year included four (2015: four) directors, details
of whose emoluments are set outf in note (a) above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining one (2015: one) highest paid employee
who is neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

BEE - FETHRAERANVNERSH
BEM<E &
(b) ENESHEE

AEBEFALUZHFHEET @ 270
(ZZ—HF O EF ENE
HFEN EX T () - B (ZF
—hF ) RSFHER (XLFEARQ
AEFHTETBRARRFAZHME
FBWT

2016 2015

—E-XEF —E—hF

HKS’000 HKS 000

FEIT FET

Salaries and other benefits B K E b 48 A 2,160 1,920

Discretionary bonus BIBIEAL 1,000 500
Retirement benefit scheme RIREANETE]

conftributions R 18 18

3,178 2,438

The emoluments of the above individual were within
the band of HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 (2015:
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, neither the chief executive nor any of the
directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

The discretionary bonus is based on the directors’ and

employees’ skills, knowledge and involvement in the
Group’s affairs and determined by reference to the Group’s
performance, as well as remuneration benchmark in the

industry and the prevailing market conditions.

Fat A 8 Z B8 & /) 3,000,001 T =
3,500,000/% 7C (==& — A4 : 2,000,001
7 70 %2 2,500,0005 7T) 2 [ °

RER  AEEYERNAURSHAR
(BRES) XNEMMEERAREER
AREMA (RERFMARL) 22
FERBERERMZBEES - tho -
RERAYETBITHRABREMEFTH
REMHE -

BBIEALENESE RER ZIEE - M@Kk
SEASEEBRRE  USEAEE 2R
BURITAHFMEERERTRMERE

N
Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK K

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 &% —F—#=H=+—HIFE

7. NET LOSS ON EQUITY INVESTMENTS 7. BRRREZEBRFE
2016 2015
—E-RE¥ —T-hF
HK$’000 HKS 000
FET FET
(Decrease) increase in fair value of EaRRERQTEE
equity investments: CRi ) & :
- held at the end of the —RImEMREFE
reporting period (5.799) =
- disposed of during the year —REARNHE 483 =
(5.316) -
Dividend income from equity investments & B R E 2 B WA 210 =
(5.106) -
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. B A
2016 2015
—EB-XRE —T-NfF
HKS’000 HKS 000
FETT FEIT
Interests on: FERTATRAE,
Bank borrowings RITHER 194 341
Margin account payable ERHRESIRP IR - 145
194 486
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 &= —F—#=H=+—HIFE

9. NET LOSS ON NET DECREASE IN INTERESTS 9. BMENTEZER A 2EERE
IN ASSOCIATES
2016 2015
—E-X —E—RF
HK$°'000 HKS 000
FET FET
The loss comprises: R
Loss on deemed disposals of partial BRAEL & — B E QAR
interest in an associate (Note) W2 B8 (K1) 3,730 5.792
Loss on disposal of interest in an HE—HEERAREREBE
associate - 555
3,730 6,347
Note: The loss for the years ended 31st March, 2016 and 2015 was Kt : BE—E—RNER-_S—RE=A=1+—
mainly resulted from the deemed disposal of partial interest AIEFEZEBEEZRGELE —BHE
in an associate which was resulted from the dilution effect of NElBoESTEE - T EITEERE
exercise of share options. sk E R BT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK K

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BR B A1 % &
2016 2015
—EB—-REF —E—HF
HK$°000 HKS 000
FETT FEIT
Profit before taxation has been R 75 A A
arrived at after charging: BB
Staff costs, including directors’ B TA
emoluments: (BREEME)
Salaries and other benefits e RHAET 35,788 33,941
Retirement benefit scheme R FIETE
contributions R 1,600 1,657
37,388 35,498
Auditor’s remuneration - audit service ZEEN & — T ARTE 1,472 1,563
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BE REE 2
equipment e 1,277 1,070
Amortisation of intangible assets BT A B 69 146
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERFEECEE - 306
Minimum lease payments under R LML BIED
operating leases in respect ZEEMERE
of rented premises SKIE 3,144 3,264
Allowance recognised for debtors, EHERZ EYARFK -
deposits and prepayments Al MIER RIE 2 B - 400
Net foreign exchange loss bE X B ER R - 12
and after crediting: WEEFTA -
Gain on disposals of property, plant LEWE - BEEEE
and equipment 2 W= 525 270
Rental income under operating leases HEME 2 ELEHENES
in respect of rented premises, WA - IR RE
net of negligible outgoings E%i 926 1,031
Net foreign exchange gain b H a5 58 3,980 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ®w R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 %t_t_ FE—NF=HA=1—HIFF

11. TAXATION 11. Hi1E
Taxation represents the deferred fax recognised by the I A EBRER ZIELETIE o 15K
Group. Details are set out in note 25. 05 o
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as HRAAEEERBEAEELELEES ZET
the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong BAE WA EMEL T B ESRBERE -

for both years.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit ANEE 7 HRBEHESESER {mﬁﬁuﬁz)\ﬁ
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or Fro B Ba A 2 S BRI T

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2015

—RE —T—hF

HK$°'000 HKS 000

FHET FET

Profit before taxation B 75 A1 A 436,334 240,528

Tax charge at the Hong Kong Profits BEBFSEE16.5%TE 2 IR

Tax rate of 16.5% 71,995 39,687
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ERBAFEAHBRFHZ 2

for tax purposes M E 2,932 2,618
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BB EB AR WAL

purposes M2 (1.750) (1,208)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIER 2 BIAEE 2 Mg 2 6,561 6,882

Tax effect of share of results of associates 2oy NI = (79.322) (47,939)

Taxation for the year AEEHIA 416 40
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/ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ®w R MG

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 %t_t_ F—NF=ZH=1—HIFF

12. DISTRIBUTIONS 12. 7Kk
2016 2015
PAY:S —ZE—A1F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FAT FET
Dividends recognised as RERNERD KT AR F]
distributions to owners of the BEHEAZRE :
Company during the year:
- Final dividend for 2015 - ——T-HFZRERE -
HK4.0 cents (2015: HK3.0 cents FR4.0BIW(ZZ—RF :
for 2014) per share —T-mMER3. 0,%1|JJ) 62,151 38,107
- Special dividend for 2016 - Nil —ZE—REZEFRRE—
(2015: HK3.0 cents for 2015 and —E—hF:
HK3.0 cents for 2014) per share —E-AFERRA3.0EI X
—E-WEFRAF3.0E) - 79,119
- Inferim dividend for 2016 - — T RFZPHRE -
HK2.0 cents (2015: HK1.0 cent il&zo,%ﬂh (ZE—1%F:
for 2015) per share ZE-RFR.0EM) 32,541 13,671
94,692 130,897
Dividends in form of: BT
- Cash -Re 19,633 34,400
- Scrip dividend —ABRRE 75,059 96,497
94,692 130,897
Dividends proposed in respect of the REZEZERE :
current year:
- Final dividend for 2016 - — R RFZRERE -
HK3.0 cents FAR3.078
(2015: HK4.0 cents) per share (ZE—RF : 4.051) 50,030 62,151
The directors of the Company have resolved to recommend RAREFZRAEZZURS IR - BRI
the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share REBEEFRRBIS M2 LE@ARE
(2015: a final dividend of HK4.0 cents per share) for the year ENBE—E—AE=A=1+—HItEE>
ended 31st March, 2016, which will be payable in cash, with KR SRR 0B (—E—FE  KER

an option to elect scrip dividend of shares, in respect of
part or all of such dividends.

BEE4.081) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 &= —F—#=H=+—HIFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. 8 REF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable AATHEAE AELZERERBRTIRT
tfo the owners of the Company is based on the following et
data:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —ZE—hF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET TrET
Earnings for the year attributable to the  ANF[E AR R HEHF A&
owners of the Company for the BB EGREREF
purpose of basic earnings per share 435,918 240,488
Number of shares
RG#E
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—AF
Weighted average number of shares AUFTEERERZF 2
for the purpose of basic earnings %47 hnge 39 £
per share 1,573,876,138 1,329,071,979
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the HREE ST —NEN_ZT—FE=A
years ended 31st March, 2016 and 2015 as the Company =t+—BIEMEFE AR R ET(T3ET
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares EINZ BEESTE T @ - R EEE &
outstanding during both years. 23 FREEET -
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ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # & % % HR & 3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK K

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9% -BERKRE

Plant, Yacht
machinery and Furniture
Land and and office motor and
buildings equipment vehicles fixtures Total
BE -
KER
THREF BAERE BEERAE KAREE k]
HKS’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS’000
FET FHET FET TFHET TFHET
COST OR VALUATION A5 ffi{&
At 1st April, 2014 RZZE—MFNYA—H 3,200 3,979 28,121 2,791 38,091
Translation adjustments [ ¥, 8 % (410) (33) (118) (164) (725)
Additions NE - 333 1,732 497 2,562
Disposals & = (122) (338) 13) (473)
Revaluation increase B fHiEE 48 = = = 48
At 31st March, 2015 RZZE—HFE=A=+—H 2,838 4,157 29,397 3,111 39,503
Translation adjustments [ i, 3 £ (66) (6) a9 (37) (128)
Additions NE - 255 2,300 60 2,615
Disposals HE - (126) (2,561) - (2,687)
Transfer to investment B EIREWE
property (Note 15) (Kiet15) (312) - - - (312)
Revaluation increase & {HiE{E 439 = = = 439
At 31st March, 2016 RZE-—RE=ZA=+—H 2,899 4,280 29,117 3,134 39,430
Comprising: B
At cost 4B WiN - 4,280 29,117 3,134 36,531
At valuation - 2016 BZE—RE2hE 2,899 - - - 2,899
2,899 4,280 29,117 3,134 39,430
DEPRECIATION wE
At Tst April, 2014 RZZE—NEMA—H - 3,458 27,239 2,744 33,441
Translation adjustments & 5, 58 2 an (33) (118) (164) (326)
Provided for the year ~ RNEEEME 103 289 636 42 1,070
Eliminated on disposals & B 45 §5 - (122) (315) (13) (450)
Reversal on revaluation 2 {4 B &[] (92) - - - (92)
At 31st March, 2015 RZE-—RAF=A=+—H - 3,592 27,442 2,609 33,643
Translation adjustments & ¥ 58 % 1 ) a9) (24) (48)
Provided for the year ~ AF[E % 99 310 761 107 1,277
Eliminated on disposals & B 5 = (126) (2.445) - (2.571)
Reversal on revaluation 28 {4 B & 5] (100) - - - (100)
At 31st March, 2016 RZE-R"E=ZA=+—H = 3,770 25,739 2,692 32,201
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31st March, 2016 RZE-—RE=ZA=+—H 2,899 510 3,378 442 7,229
At 31st March, 2015 RZZE—HFE=A=+—H 2,838 565 1,955 502 5,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 ét_—t_ =

—NFZA=F—HIFFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (confinued) 14. 9% BERRHE @)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are it BERZXEBEBULNBEGSETE -
depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates ERIN| -
per annum:
Freehold land Nil KA ZERE 1 iiid
Buildings 4% EF 4%
Plant, machinery and 20% - 33'%%4% = - Hes & 20% - 33':%
office equipment WAEXRME
Yacht and motor vehicles 20% BEfE N2 R 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% FEREE 20%
The carrying value of land and buildings held by the Group NEBNRREBRFAIF T EREFT ZE@E

as at the end of the reporting period represented freehold
land and property in Canada.

EEMEAKAEE L R WE -

If the land and building had not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation

i b RIEF ARG ER - AIFSESIRE LK
AR 25T E A 732,000/ T (Z 2 — R F -
862,00078 70) st ARNER A M ISk - ANEE

of HK$732,000 (2015: HK$862,000). Details of the fair value THEREFZAFLEBEFSHBFTH N
measurements of the Group’s land and buildings are set out 15 °
in note 15.
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15. REWE
HK$ 000
TrET
FAIR VALUE ATEE
At 1st April, 2014 M-ZE—MEEPA—H 21,150
Translation adjustments ME 5, 8 B2 (2.710)
Increase in fair value recognised in R8P ER A FEEE INEE
profit or loss, unrealised REIR 319
At 31st March, 2015 RZZE—HF=A=+—H 18,759
Translation adjustments BEE 5, S B (432)
Transfer from property, plant and HEYE  WBEREE (Hiz14)
equipment (Nofe 14) 312
Increase in fair value recognised in RIBEP R AT EELINEE -
profit or loss, unrealised REIH 3.327
At 31st March, 2016 MRZE—RFE=H=+—H 21,966

The fair value of the Group's investment property at the end
of the reporting period has been arrived on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by RHL Appraisal Limited.

RBERR - AEEREME 2 A FEETS
BAKFITHEREBRARRNZ A Z A ER
BE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

For fhe year ended 31st March, 2016 %é_—t_ =

15

16

0% ®RMES

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The fair value measurements for the Group’s land and
buildings (included in property, plant and equipment)
and investment property is categorised as Level 3 (see
note 3). The fair value was determined based on the direct
comparison method, which makes reference to the recent
transactions for similar properties in the proximity and
adjusted for a number of unobservable inputs, including
discounts of 5% - 10% for the spread between the ask prices
and transaction prices of the properties, etc., between the
comparable properties and the subject matters. A slight
change in any of the unobservable inputs above holding all
other factors constant would have no significant effect to
the fair value of the land and buildings and the investment
property. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
There has been no change to the valuation technique or
level of fair value hierarchy during the year.

The Group’s investment property represented a property in
Canada held to earn rental and for capital appreciation
purposes, which is measured using the fair value model and
is classified and accounted for as an investment property.

—AE= = —HILEE
15. REWME (&)

AEB I REF (BREEDE BE KK
HWAREEME L AL EBEFERDEA
FIW (FL2HMITES) - R FEETIELEH
MR E 2SR PR AEE LA
EBEWALLBRHAR SMEUET AR T
ZIE N A BIR 2 8UE (BB :85%10% 1) %
BEEBE)#ETAZE  WEM U A&
mZ%A%ﬁﬁﬁW BE) MATEEME
BTN T REFUAREE
?ﬁ@ﬁ%iﬁwg N EEIRZES
CHEREMNREZDEATE
c RAFE - m&&%&&%
B1E B P KF R G NI (T fm] 2

@ﬁa%mﬁ

AEBREMNEREMERYE - HEEMU
FRIEMEBVES REAREE - ARAERIARF
EBEEAAELINFRENEBRUALRK -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
HK$"000
FET
cosT B
At Tst April, 2014 R-ZZE—NFMA—H 3,268
Disposals 5 (532)
At 31st March, 2015 and 31st March, 2016 R-ZE—AF=A=+—BEk_-_Z—A"F=A=+—H 2,736
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B RRE
At 1st April, 2014 R-ZE—MFmMA—H 1,627
Eliminated on disposal jiNtuek==S s (226)
Provided for the year PN 146
At 31st March, 2015 RZE—RF=A=+—H 1,547
Provided for the year AN [ A 69
At 31st March, 2016 RZE—R"F=A=+—H 1,616
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31st March, 2016 RZE—ARF=ZA=+—H 1,120
At 31st March, 2015 A—E—REFE=R=+—H 1,189
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16 BILEE (£)
BN EERERBEERPRZGHTE - K
B8 A4,0008 70 (ZZ— A : 73,0008 70) €
FrefiRmE 2 G AIFR4FIN Bk
SEVAETRFH AQNRESCELE
WEEZREE  TREEAMERET
ETERMEFTEZ BT ERBEEISE -

Intangible assets represented club memberships in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Other than a club membership with a
carrying value of HK$4,000 (2015: club memberships with
carrying values of HK$73,000) that was/were acquired
with membership periods of 3 to 4 years, the remaining
club memberships had indefinite lives. The directors of

the Company have reviewed the carrying amounts of the
infangible assets and considered that, under the current
market conditions, no impairment loss would be recognised

in profit or loss for both years.

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(a) Investments in associates

17. BEEZE QR RES
(o) BEQARKRE

2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E—FEF
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Share of consolidated net assets BB E DR ZERE
of associates: BEFE :
- listed in Hong Kong —REBL™M 3,053,228 2,641,097
- listed overseas — RN ETR - -
Goodwill e 1,177 1,177
3,054,405 2,642,274
Market value of listed securities: EhESME
Hong Kong BB 1,142,788 1,246,031
Overseds N 149,728 128,335
1,292,516 1,374,366
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 %t_—t_ =3

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(b) Particulars of the Group’s associates at 31st March,

2016 and 2015

Name of associate

Bendan

Place
of listing

Lt s

Place of
incorporation/
registration
Rits%/
b

—NFZA=F—HIFFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. BENTRER (&)

(b) AEBHEATNR=-F—

—HF=B=+—A2HE

Percentage of
issued share capital

Principal
place of
operations

TTEENY
2016

ZE-xEf -%
%

and voting rights
held indirectly
by the Company
ALRBRFRERT
REEALRRER

2015
ik

%

Principal activities

IERR

"ERZE

[TC Properties Group Limited
("ITC Properties”)

BROESEARAR
([ExpE])

PYI Corporation Limifed
("PYI")

RESEARAA
(MrE])

Burcon NutraScience
Corporation ( *Burcon”)

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Canada, Unifed
States and
Germany

nex - FAR
e

Bermuda
BRE

Bermuda
BRE

Canada

mgx

Hong Kong 33.61

&b

Hong Kong 28.52

&b

Canada 20.87

JIEVN

32.62

26.81

20.48

Investment holding in companies
engaged in property development

and investment in Macau, the PRC,

Hong Kong and Canada,
development, investment and
operation of hotel and leisure

business in the PRC and Hong Kong,

securifies investment and the

provision of loan financing services

RERRNER - P8 FERNEX

RENZERERE  RPER
BEUERR RERSEEER

HEEE  EFRARREETRE

Rz A7)

Investment holding in companies
engaged in port and infrastructure

development and investment, and the

operation of ports and logistics
facilifies, land and property
development and investment in
association with ports and
infrastructure development and
provision of comprehensive
engineering and property-related
services
REBRREEENRERER
BRE BORMRRELEE
HENRERERABNLS
NEERERRE REZAIR
BOERERE L DA

Investment holding in company
engaged in the development of
commercial plant profein

REERNEZLRAER

VRS AN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M E

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. BBE QT ER (£)
(c) Summarised consolidated financial information of (c) BELNAZEMBEHUE

associates

Summarised consolidated financial information in NTREYANEEBR ETEHMESNRI 288
respect of each of the Group’s material associates G ERIEE - NEFEIRE 2 H b
is set out below. The other associate invested by the NEMERMSIEANEAKN o LA TEE 8
Group is not individually material. The summarised BRI E Jh7 B & N R IR 1B E S B &S )
consolidated financial information below represents S ER I GEMBERRPFAYRZ
amounts shown in the associates’ consolidated SR WHEBEIFLT @ fizites e
financial statements prepared in accordance with HEEMERERRE BB ENEB 4SS B
HKFRSs and adjusted for the effects of the significant Rz BB EAR SR EA L
transactions or events that occur between the date ZEH TR o

of which the associate’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared and that of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements where applicable.

All of these associates are accounted for using ol N D AT G 2y - g
the equity method in these consolidated financial AR e AAR -
statements.
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/ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK K

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. BE QAR ER (&)

(c) BEQARAGEMBENME (&)

(¢) Summarised consolidated financial information of
associates (contfinued)

Material associates FTEBEE T
2016 2015
ZB-RF —E-n%
ITc I1c

Properties PYI Properties PYI

BRnE e BRILE (R

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000

Fir FEr TET TET

(Note (i) (Nofe (i)
(W) (Wtaip)

(Note () (Note (i)
(Hizm) (Hitam)

Financial information of e B REAM

consoliclated statement FENAZKZ

of profit or loss and other TBEH

comprehensive income
Revenue /0N 143,402 488,052 59,610 523,557
Profit (loss) for the year, affrioutoble  BEARIEH AR

f0 the owners of the associates AEEEH (BR) 1,460,094 (297.902) 803,550 86,028
Other comprehensive expenses for BENRERAER

the year, atfributable to the owners AEEEMZE

of the associates A (93.417) (249.132) (321,687) (184,975)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) B8 A AliA A B {5

for the year, aftributable o the REEEABA

owners of the associates (Ax) 88 1,366,617 (547,034) 481,863 (98947)
Dividends declared by the associates ~ AEEE B 1]

during the year, aftrioutable to the AERERKE

Group 79,633 6,466 149,270 12,270
Financial information of HETBHRIZRZ

consolidlated statement HEEH

of financial posifion
Properly, plant and equipment ER G 215,212 1,522,323 222,219 1,590,300
Investment properties e 1,254,000 1,137,733 465,000 1,340,016
Project under development REHIER - 180,269 - 188,146
Inferests in associates and joint BENAIRAEDAES

ventures 3,005,993 1,872,406 2,148,202 1,834,746
Other non-current assets EtIERBAE 879,946 959,262 788,580 1,069,672
Stock of properties L3 400,256 1,528,231 183,356 1,791,947
Other current assefs EtRBEE 1,923,723 1,225,589 2,399,088 1,617,096
Other current licbilties Epr#ak (1.913,998)  (1,697,489) (1417,847) (2.074979)
Other non-current liabilties Atk nBam (250,234)  (1,605,169) (594,811) (1,804,371)
Net assets of the associates GENREEFE 5,514,898 5,123,155 4,193,787 5,552,573
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e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ
17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

17. BENTFRER (&)
(c) BELNTAZEMBEHNME(2)

(c) Summarised consolidated financial information of
associates (confinued)

Material associates (continued) FEBEE NG (Z)
2016 2015
ZB-RF “E-1nf
ITC I1C

Properties PYI Properties PYI

BRME e ERE (R

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000

Fér FAz FET AL

(Note () (Note (i) (Noe () (Note (i)

(i) (W) W) (Wit)
Reconciliation o the carrying AN 2y ]
amounts of inferests in ZHE
the associafes:
Net assets of the associates BERREESE 5,514,898 5,123,155 4,193,787 5,550,573
Less: B
Aftributable fo: (o
- holders of share options -BERRMKE
granted by the associates BRESEA (2.928) (4.970) (4,667) (2,068)
- non-controlling inferests —FERER 1,851 (823,579) 283 (708,539)
Net assefs atfributable fo the BENREEA
owners of the associates BIEEERE 5,513,821 4,294,606 4,189,403 4,841,966
Net assets atfributable fo the REENEE DA ER
Group's interests in the associates BIEEETE 1,853,242 1,199,986 1,366,408 1,274,689
Goodwil BE - 1177 - 1177
Carrying amount of the Group's REERBEAH
interests in the associates EnzBAE 1,853,242 1,201,163 1,366,408 1,275,866
Fair value of listed associates, IiBERRZ AT
valued based on the quoted prices BE(EERAEEE
in active markets for the identical REETS  HE
asset directly, and categorised as B WEATERE
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy ERHBF|REIR) 907,832 234,956 1,046,035 199,996
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ
17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(¢) Summarised consolidated financial information of
associates (contfinued)

17. BENTRER (&)
(c) BEDNFAZEMBERBE(£2)

Other associate BaEEN\a
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—AF
HK$’000 HKS 000
FETT FEIT
The Group's share of: AREEEAS -
Loss and total comprehensive AEEBEREER A5
expenses for the year (7.949) (56.398)
Aggregate carrying amount of the A& BB A Al
Group’s interests in the associate Z BB A - -
Notes: Htat -

(i) ITC Properties

During the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Group
elected scrip shares of ITC Properties for the final dividend
for the year ended 31st March, 2015 (2015: final and
special dividends for the year ended 31st March, 2014)
and for the interim dividend for the six months ended 30th
September, 2015 (2015: interim and special dividends
for the six months ended 30th September, 2014).
Furthermore, the Group acquired shares of ITC Properties
in the open market for an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$18.2 million (2015: HK$45.7 million).
A gain on acquisition of the additional interests in ITC
Properties of HK$27.7 million (2015: HK$27.4 million) was
recognised in the profit or loss.

(i) PYI

During the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Group
acquired shares of PYl in the open market for an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$13.6
million (2015: nil). A gain on acquisition of the additional
interests in PYl of HK$62.7 million (2015: nil) was
recognised in the profit or loss.

() fEEME

HE-_Z—RE=ZA=+—AH1t#E
B AEEERENEFEDENRBR
DUBREBEE-_ZE—HAF=A=+—H
I EERERE(ZE—HE HEZ
T-—ME=ZA=+—HLEEXRHAR
BERIRE) REE—T-—RFAA=T
BIEAEAMFAEEE (ZE—REF:
HE-_Z-—NWEHLA=+HI~@EA
MR B RERIIRE) o tEoh - AL E K
A B T 35 DA 48 X {8 4918,200,000/% 7T
(ZZ—FA4 : 45,700,000/87C) EAE
HHERD - BEESEHEBIMERS
2 W 527,700,000 T (—Z T — A 4F ¢
27,400,000/ 70) E R B R o

Gy fRE

REBEE-—ZT—XNE=-A=1+—HItHF
B AEBRAHAMSREBREZK
5 AR A(E 4 513,600,000/ 7T (= F
—AF F) o WIEREBEIMEE 2K
£562,700,0008 L (Z T —HF | T)
EREEANTER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 ét_—ﬁ_;—/\ FE=H="1—HIFFE
17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. BENTRER (&)

(c) Summarised consolidated financial information of (c) BELNTAZEMBEHNME(2)
associates (confinued)

Notes: (confinued) Hiit - (&)

@iy Assessment for impairment of associates (i) FPREEE DR ZRE
During the years ended 31st March, 2016 and 2015, the BE-_Z—XRKEE=-_Z—FRF=A
directors of the Company have assessed the recoverable =+—BHItFEE BRZEES LLHm2Z
amounts of interests in associates using value in use BMENTFIESZEEESR EMES
calculations for the assessment of impairment on interests ZTBEBE ' FIAAATREEHGEHA
in associates listed in Hong Kong as the carrying value BETE XTI GEBES AR EIR Z AW
of each of the interest in associate is higher than the B & /EL(HEL S ARl A °

respective market value of the listed securities.

In determining the estimated value in use of the above BrE il ENa R BT ERE
interests in associates, the directors of the Company BE AR EEHAEBR TS
estimated the Group’s share of the present value of the HARATE (G TEEAC G RN Rl 2R B P
estimated future cash flows expected to be generated EXZRsAKRRESR2RE 821
by each of its investment in associate at the end of 3&%/& AREELEZEHE S RERR
the reporting period, including the cash flows from the MHEREBABEER G ihlg o
operations of the associate and the proceeds from the qu S FARBEER 2 ETEMRE - ANBE
ultimate disposal of the relevant interest by the Group. NAINEEEELRBEBZGEA $f‘f{§ °

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations
represent the estimated fair values of the underlying
assets and liabilities of the associates.

(iv) Unrecognised share of losses of an associate (iv) REREGE—EBHE AR ZEE
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of AEEERIEBEREEGE —FHBEEA
losses of an associate. The amount of the cumulative BlZER Rt RBEREGZEE A
unrecognised share of the associate, extracted from the AlZ &% (Mt B 22 A a HREgE
relevant audited consolidated financial statements of the ZEREMBHRET)MAT ¢

associate is as follows:

2016 2015
—NE —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
F#ET FHET
Accumulated unrecognised share B ARERE (s E AR

of losses of the associate Z &8 6,655 6,279
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ
18.

19.

Gl

EQUITY INVESTMENTS 18. EmRE
2016 2015
—B-RF —T—HF
HK$°'000 HKS 000
FET FET
Current: e
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong REBZ EmMRAES 50,830 -
Non-current: FEmED
Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong ~ R&B 2 3F IR AE FH 40,600 -
91,430 -

The fair value measurement of listed equity securities is
categorised as Level 1 (see note 3) as the fair values of the
investments were determined by quotfed bid prices in an
active market.

The unlisted equity securities represented the investment in
an unlisted entity that indirectly holds an equity investment
listed in Hong Kong. The fair value measurement of unlisted
equity securities is categorised as Level 2 (see note 3). The
fair value is determined and adjusted with reference to the
quoted bid price of the listed equity investment in an active
market.

EIBRABHZZATFEEAEIESF IR
(RMEE3) RARZEREZAFEETD
BEBRMSMBIEANEERE -

FLTRAZSFERIFLMER (EBER
BERBEABZEMBAZR) ZIKE - kL™
BAFESZ R FEEFEDRAF 2K (AW
iH3) e AFEETDZE LhRaRENERE
Mgz EABEEREHAE -

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19. EWIRA - FI € RS KE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—FE
HK$°000 HKS 000
FET FET
Trade debtors FEUE S AR 3,319 4,525
Other debtors, deposits and HmEWERR - 7l&k
prepayments TEfT B 264,289 13,331
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W RERB (1.344) (1,744)
262,945 11,587
266,264 16,112

Trade debtors arising from leasing of investment property
business are payable monthly in advance and the credit
terms granted by the Group to other trade debtors normally
ranged from 30 days to 90 days. For interest receivable,
there are no credit terms granted by the Group.

REMEREEBELEZRIE HEFER
A8 MASEBEREMERE ZRKED
ZIEEH— B30 Eo0H 1% - REET
EENAEREEER -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 éét_—t_ =

—NFZA=F—HIFFE

19. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19. ERERA - FI € RFBANRIE (&)
(continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors presented J"&cqﬁzf’j%ﬁﬁ RN IR & HA R 1% 3¢ = | HE 7 AR iR
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting DT :
period:
2016 2015
— N —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Trade debtors FEUE 5 AR K
0 - 30 days 0 - 30H 2,412 4,524
31 - 60 days 31 - 60H - 1
Over 90 days 3890 H 907 -
3,319 4,525
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess BEXEMHRER  AEBETIZEERF

the potential customer’s credit quality. The directors of the
Company will continuously assess the recoverability of the
receivables.

As at 31st March, 2016, the trade debtors of HK$907,000
aged over 90 days was past due but not impaired (2015:
nil). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, all
tfrade debtors that are neither past due nor impaired have
good credit quality at the end of the reporting period with
reference to past settlement history.

As at 31st March, 2016, included in other debtors was
a refundable earnest money of Canadian Dollar ("C$")
40,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$242,000,000)
(2015: nil) paid by the Company for entfering into a
memorandum of understanding with an independent third
party in October 2015 (the "MOU") in order to facilitate a
continued exclusive negotiation in respect of a possible
acquisition of 25% to 33% indirect interest in a reputable
hotel located in Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada. The
expiry date of the MOU was subsequently extended to 31st
May, 2016. On 31st May, 2016, the MOU was terminated
and the earnest money was refunded to the Company
accordingly.

ZEEEE - ARAREERKEETRELRR
TR Z A

RZE—"F=H=+—H '907,000% T
Z W E 5 R SRR 8 Bio0 A I SR A (=
T—RHF £ ARFEERE B2ZH
BEZEBNRE  AEBRIRE BRI &R
HMERECMBEKE ZRFIEE R
EEEX -

R-ZZT—ARF=ZA=+—8 HtEKREXR
FEBEARRRR _Z— £¢+ﬂ£ﬁaf%§%
M B = HEI R R E TS ([FREE TS ]) BT
> 5 2 3= 4 40,500,00000 2 K7t ([0t )
(}'E 7 #9242,000,000 7T) (Z B — R 4 :
) AN R EE R T A B A REUR R
MEREBI Mt BaTE 2 —He HEE
25%E33%ME E R BB EITED - SRRE
,_\ﬁZEﬁEHﬂEmE&LEi_7
Eﬁﬁi +—B R-BE—RNERA=F—
BB E SRR WEREEAA R
Eu}iﬁ_é

N
/Z

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 4 £ 3 &

112



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED Z # & % % HR & 3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

zltl
ITVAAY

Gl

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ

19.

20.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

Movement in the allowance for other debtors are as follows:

19.

WM ST RBEMNREE)

HipEURARR 2 BB T

2016 2015

—E-XREF —E—hF

HK$'000 HKS 000

FET FET

Balance at the beginning of the year FNEF 1,744 1,344
Written off #1555 (400) -
Impairment losses recognised BHERBEESE - 400
Balance at the end of the year FIRAETT 1,344 1,744

The above balance of allowance for doubtful debts on
other debtors represented individually impaired debtors
which had been in severe financial difficulties. The Group
did not hold any collateral over these balances.

it L b P MR R R 2 R R R R R RR AR R M
BREZEEFREHA - NEEILEHZ
ER/RFHHEMAERR -

LOANS RECEIVABLE 20. EWWE R
2016 2015
—EB-RE —ET—AF
HK$°000 HKS$ 000
FET F#ET
Unsecured AR 1 111,898 1,898
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERERRESE (1.898) (1,898)
110,000 =

The impairment loss of HK$1,898,000 at 31st March,
2016 and 2015 related to an individually impaired loan
receivable for which the debtor was in severe financial
difficulties. The Group did not hold any collateral over this
balance.

As at 31st March, 2016, the unimpaired loans receivable
were unsecured and repayable on demand. They carried
interests at contractual rates ranging from the best lending
rate of HKD quoted by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited (the "Best Lending Rate”)
minus 2.75% to the Best Lending Rate plus 2% per annum
with the effective interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 7% per
annum.

R-E—RER_ZT—FRHFE=ZA=+—8
SR {E 15 $81,898,00058 7T B2 ([ 51| A R (B 2 FE
WERER MBEBESABRARENR
8o AEEWER L EHITETMAERR -

RZFB-—R"EZA=1t—H LEREZE
WERREER  WARBEREER -ZEE
REREMOMREFE  FRNENFHEELBE
CRITARAAABETREREERN X
((REZBEME]) H2EEHREBEEE
ME2E - BERFNEN F22EE7E -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

20. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 20. EWE R (#)

Before approving any loans to new borrowers, the Group will
assess the potential borrower’s credit quality and defines
credit limits individually. Limits aftributed to borrowers are
reviewed at the end of each year. The directors of the
Company will continuously assess the recoverability of
the loans receivable. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the borrowers have sound financial background
and there has not been a significant change in credit
quality. As a result, the amounts were considered to be
recoverable.

REFERAREERMERA - AREEE
AEBEERAZGEEERERBIISAZE
ERE - tERANBENREFREERRET
B ARBEFHAEFERKERZA
WERE - RAREERA  ERAUBE
BRI AEEERYESKES - Ft -
BRASBRERBA UM -

21. PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE 21. FEWR N E B
As at 31st March, 2015, the amount represented a R-ZE—RFE=FB=+—"H8 ' E@ELBERR
promissory note in the principal amount of HK$300,000,000, HREEERESRE AR ([$F8H]) AT —FR
which carried interest of 5% per annum and had maturity N % & %8 /3300,000,00058 7T © LA S Fl| R5[E
in December 2015, issued by Hanny Holdings Limited FTEYERZT—RAF+= AREBNANGE
("Hanny”), as part of the consideration for its acquisition of B HEHEANBEAEBRRNER ZHBA
the Group's interests in a then associate, Rosedale Hotel AlZHABEEERAR AR ([IAE]) #%
Holdings Limited ("Rosedale”). The promissory note was ZHEARE c ZANEE G NIZA L EBERE
initially recognised aft fair value and subsequently measured R HBIREBHEKASE  EREE=-Z
at amortised cost, and had been fully settled during the —RNE=ZA=+—BHBIFEEREHEE -
year ended 31st March, 2016.

22. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, BANK 22 EHIS{EX - BT&£ERES

BALANCES AND CASH

The short-term bank deposits and bank balances carried
interests at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.01% to
2.00% (2015: 0.01% to 3.25%) per annum.

BHRITFER R TE T AT S RITERF
KR8 ESNT0.01EE20E (ZZE—F
£ 0.01EE325E) 1%

N
Z
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For fhe year ended 31st March, 2016 %t_—t_ =3
23.

24.

0% ®RMES

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Included in creditors and accrued expenses were frade
creditors of HK$1,029,000 (2015: HK$416,000) and their aged
analysis presented based on the invoice date at the end of

—NFZA=F—HIFFE

23.

FEAS R BT B X

F& 1+ BR 3R & & 51 A 2 P 22 751,029,000/ 7T
—T—FF 4160008 T) ZENE FEE
N MESERREPREZBEZHHZREK D

the reporting period is as follows: T :
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TAET

Trade creditors FERTE SRR

0 - 30 days 0-30H 1,019 403
31 - 60 days 31 - 60H 10 18
1,029 416

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit
fimeframe.

BANK OVERDRAFTS

Bank overdrafts as at 31st March, 2016 and 2015 were
unsecured and carried infterest at prevailing market rates
ranging from 4.00% to 4.88% (2015: at 4.88%) per annum.

24.

BEZFOEEHNROR - AEEHBAESR

R ERECR - BRABENKIBETIZHEA
Eﬁﬂﬁr@"
RITEX
\Q:; NER—_E—FRF=ZA=+—8

;és'z)?;f%ﬁ%f&ﬁﬂhzm%L THEREE
4001_1488@ T 488E)FHE °
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 25 EEHIEEE
The following table summarises the major deferred tax REAFARNEFEERR 2 EERERIA
liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon BE(BE) ALBESH 0 TE

during the current and prior years:

Accelerated

fax Revaluation Tax

depreciation of properties losses Total

MEBRERE EfiE REFE @t

HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000

TFAET THET TET TET

At st April, 2014 RZZE-MFENA—H 889 726 (428) 1,187

Charge (credit) o profit RERME (GTA)

or loss 176 40 (176) 40
Charge to other A 2 E A B

comprehensive income - 17 - 17

At 31st March, 2015 RZZE-RF=RA=+—H 1,065 783 (604) 1,244

Charge (credit) o profit RE&EMR (GTA)

or loss 202 416 (202) 416
Charge to other RE A2 E AR

comprehensive income - 67 - 67

At 315t March, 2016 R-Z2-AE=H=+-AH 1,267 1,266 (806) 1,727

At 31st March, 2016, the Group has unused tax losses RZE—ARF=ZA=+—08 ~x5EEAEH

of HK$763,649,000 (2015: HK$722,614,000) available 763,649,000 7T (= E—F4F : 722,614,000

for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset PEIT) 2 R B) A I8 B 1B AT A DA K 45 R 2R

has been recognised in respect of HK$4,884,000 (2015: i ) o AN & B B Bt H 4,884,000 7T (=

HK$3.655,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset in T — A F ¢ 3,655,000/ 7T ) TR T IE

respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$758,765,000 BE o R AR EEHEE R KR FI R - L

(2015: HK$718,959,000) has been recognised due to the 7 T B 8 T TH /B 18758,765,0008 7T (=&

unpredictability of future profit streams. Other than tax — R F 1 718,959,000/ 0) FERIELEFHE

losses of HK$3,184,000 (2015: HK$3,260,000) that will expire E-BRER-_ZE-NFE_ZT=-hFHE

throughout the years from 2028 to 2035, other tax losses 2 TR IA & 183,184,000 T (—ZZ — A F

may be carried forward indefinitely. 3,260,000/ 7T) AN - EL 5% 18 /&5 18 A £ (R Hf

e o
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R 7
Number of shares Value
B8 E BE
HK$ 000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: SREE.OVE T EEK
Authorised: JERE ¢
At 1st April, 2014, R= 2? MEMA—A -~
31st March, 2015 —hE=A=+—8H
and 31st March, 2016 RZZ—RE=A=+—H 102,800,000,000 1,028,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER
At 1st April, 2014 RZZ—WMFMA—H 1,270,229,989 12,702
Issue of shares (Note (a)) BIIRG (Hit()) 163,541,085 1,636
At 31st March, 2015 RZE—RAF=A=+—H 1,433,771,074 14,338
Issue of shares - on placing BT — R ER & IR
of shares (Note (b)) (KiaE b)) 120,000,000 1,200
Issue of shares - scrip dividend BT — AR E
(Note (c)) (Kiat(c)) 113,883,719 1,139
At 31st March, 2016 RZZE—A"F=A=+—8H 1,667,654,793 16,677
Notes: e -
(@) 96,849,608 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued by the (a) K@ﬂaﬁé:?—@i—f—ﬂ NAREEGE

Company to the shareholders who had elected to receive
scrip dividend in respect of the final and special dividends
for the year ended 31st March, 2014 on 6th October, 2014 at
HK$0.5668 per share and 66,691,477 shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued by the Company to the shareholders who had
elected to receive scrip dividend in respect of the inferim and
special dividends for the six months ended 30th September,
2014 on 26th January, 2015 at HK$0.6238 per share.

—MMFE=A=1+—HLEFEZRHX
ffﬁ‘alﬂﬁ B BABR AR B 2 B 5 LA = % 0.5668
7 T %% 1796,849,608% & i [ 160.017%8 7T 2
B WR=—ZFE—RAF—A=_F+/NHREE
MEEZE_ZT-—NOEAA=Z+THLEARNEARAZ
P HA R 4 B A B MERUA BR K B 2 B R A B AR
0.6238% 7T 35 1766,691,477 % & A% [ {£0.01
BILZ B’ e

(b) On 10th June, 2015, the Company completed a placement, (o) R=ZZE—AFATH ARAFRFEBREER
through a placing agent, of 120,000,000 new shares of IEEEXFT%:F@*M_FEEEMO 000,000f%
the Company at a price of HK$0.88 per share to certain KABFAD - B 1EE0.8878 T °
independent third parties.

(c) 73,298,347 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued by the () ARRENR_ZT—HFT+ARBMEERE
Company to the shareholders who had elected to receive scrip T -AF=A=1+—HIEFEZRHAR
dividend in respect of the final dividend for the year ended BULER AR AR B 2 i% 3 LA B R%0.6681 78 T 3%
31st March, 2015 on 5th October, 2015 at HK$0.6681 per share 773,298,347 & B I {H0.01/8 JT 2 B {7
and 40,585,372 shares at HK$0.01 each were issued by the WHR—ZE—RNF—A-t+tHREEREE
Company to the shareholders who had elected to receive —T-RAFNA=THIEANEAZFERE
scrip dividend in respect of the interim dividend for the six U BR A BE AR B, 2 B 3R LA 55 A%0.642878 T3 1T
months ended 30th September, 2015 on 27th January, 2016 at 40,585,372/ = AX I {H0.01 /8 T Z A% (7 °
HK$0.6428 per share.

These shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares of ZERMARZ TEHERNANRIERIREGRNDE

the Company in all respects. BRIFEHA -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

27.SHARE OPTIONS 27. BIRH#E

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted at the annual general
meeting of the Company on 19th August, 2011 (the
"Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentive or reward to eligible persons for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts fo promote the interests of,
the Company and its subsidiaries and/or any invested
entity(ies) and its subsidiaries.

The Board of Directors of the Company may in its
absolute discretion, subject to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme, grant options to, inter alia, employees or
executives, including executive directors of the Company,
the controlling shareholder of the Company and any
invested entity and their respective subsidiaries, non-
executive directors of the Company and any invested
entity and their respective subsidiaries, supplier, advisor,
agent, consultant or contractor for the provision of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any invested entity
and its subsidiaries and any vendor, customer or celebrity
of any member of the Group or any invested entity and its
subsidiaries or any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group
and any invested entity and its subsidiaries.

ARRBRAEBRESS ((BREFSDC
RZZF——FNA+IBTRABH]D E
FAZARBBRRBFRSERN

R B EAREAAAAREMEA
AR,/ SAETRE KR EHE 2 72 Flas
fEH BB TS T8 2 & BB AL IR UKD
% 52 -

ARREFTSEERBERET B ZERT -
AEERNESERER T (AP EE) XA
AERERMEMREEBREESE 8 ZH
BRAZEEHITHRAR (BEARART
Ex) ARARAEMNREEREKRESS
ZMBRAZIFATES - AARKEERK
BRASEMREERR R EMEB R ARMHE
SRS 2 LI - A~ IR - B
FABE R AEEBERKE QR HERMRE
ERNEMBARZEMNRE BEXEA
AL RAAEE - EFAREEBLRAENELR
AR - ERAE MBI SIEZEMA
THER-
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ

27.SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 27. B E (&)

At the time of adoption by the Company of the Share
Option Scheme on 19th August, 2011, the aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of
all options to be granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
adopted by the Company must not exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the Share Option Scheme. The
Company may refresh such limit by an ordinary resolution
of its shareholders at a general meeting provided that the
limit so refreshed does not exceed 10% of the then total
number of issued shares of the Company as at the date(s)
of the shareholders’ approvals. Share options previously
granted under any share option scheme(s) (including
options outstanding, cancelled, or lapsed in accordance
with the relevant scheme rules or exercised options) shall
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit
as refreshed. As at the date of which these consolidated
financial statements authorised for issuance, the total
number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 155,377,107 (2015: 127,022,998) shares, which
represented approximately 9% (2015: 9%) of the number
of shares in issue of the Company as at the date of which
these consolidated financial statements authorised for
issuance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
from fime to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting, the total number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
to any eligible person in any 12-month period up fo and
including the date of further grant shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of the Company’s shares in issue from fime
to fime. Options granted to a substantial shareholder and/
or an independent non-executive director of the Company
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue and
having an aggregate value exceeding HKS$5 million must be
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting in advance.

ARBR-ZT——F N\ A+ LB ERMERE
FTEIE - IRBERAE S R AR R RRAZ
FHEMBEREFSAAFTBETFRLEZE
BRI TERFREE T EIT 2D &=
HBEBETABER R EERESEE
BARRZBETRMDBEZ10% AR A
AEBRERBRRERAT FBBLBERER
SEETRA PR I T 18 S BR B AT B AR AR
R#EBHARRBEITRMDBERI10% °
AT EEFEMRGIME - Tt RILATRE
E{r] BB AR R AT 81 35 I A0 BB AR 4 (B 1B AR R AR
BRI EIRERITE - B R e
ETEZHE) - RUEERAVBERRER
TR BE - ARIRERRAERT A BT 2 B
D HEE 5155377107 B (h (— T —F4F -
127,022,998) (A It F4R & B 75 M = IE %
R AHARR Z BTG LB AI9%
(ZZ—F1F :9%) - BEWL - BIEEERRAE
AT 8 R AN A B Z A E B AR AT 8134% H M i
RITEZ 280 H AR TT B R AE I 7T (3 B BE 1
FROIZED  AESSHE LB BE
AR TR EITIRMNBRE230% -

BRIEEARRIREERRAE LHE - BRI
HEMEBEBHEL B BIEEM+Z6E A 8
A RIEBRETEIRA AR 2 EMEME
RIEETEI M EAE B/ ATRE R FHE
ZERE(THREAEWITE - FHK MK
1T 2 AR IE) AT (R P 81T R 8 T 88 1T
ZARDNBIRMEE - TAIBEARRNEE
BITRMBE 21% - IEM+ =@ B HifE
BYARBIEERRR SBIIERITES
FEMRESTACHEAL(ERR LR
B 2 ERERBAARRNREBITROBE 2
0.1%im #8 (B {E }8485,000,000/8 7T * MBI
BEARABRRERRANS EHE -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

27.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

27. B fE (&)

The period within which the options may be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme will be determined by the
directors of the Company at the time of grant. This period
must expire in any event not later than the day falling 10
years affer the date on which the offer relating to such
option is duly approved by the Board of Directors. The
Share Option Scheme does not provide for any minimum
period for which an opfion must be held before it can be
exercised. Options may be granted at an initial payment
of HK$1.00 for each acceptance of grant of option(s). The
directors of the Company shall specify a date, being a date
not later than 30 days after (i) the date on which the offer of
the options is issued, or (ii) the date on which the conditions
for the offer are satisfied, by which the eligible person must
accept the offer or be deemed to have declined it.

The exercise price of the options will be determined by
the directors of the Company (subject to adjustments as
provided in the rules of the Share Option Scheme) which
shall not be lower than the nominal value of the shares of
the Company and shall be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotatfions sheet on the
date of the offer, which must be a business day: and (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’'s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer.

Subject to early termination in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option
Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing after the Adoption Date, after which period no
further options shall be granted.

As at 31st March, 2016 and 2015, there were no outstanding
share options granted by the Company pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme. No share options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the current year and
prior years.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ

28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. B [E b B B
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AREEEEHERN  BEBRAEEEET
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BEKE - WiE BB ERRRERES AR
while maximising the return to owners of the Company NEIER AR R AKDOER o NEE 2 BEEE
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. BEEEFEUR—BFHEZTE o
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, net RNEFB EREFEBIEER KRS RE
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to SEEBEE RANATHEE AELEZ &5
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, BHEEBRTERA  BtEH REMEE -

accumulated profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure ANATEETFTHEENEE - EAETZ
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors —Zn EEBHEEEBARKARNRZIBE NI
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with R o NEEBB AT MRS REBEITHR
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall REBTHERNERIRGER » FTEHEER
capital structure through the payment of dividends and LR ANIRE o

new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. €T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (o) SRTESE

2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—ARF
HK$°000 HKS 000
FET FET

Financial assets SREE
FVTPL BEATEEF AR 91,430 =

Amortised cost (including cash BiENAR (BEReR

and cash equivalents) REEEIER) 429,163 456,609

Financial liabilities SRIBE
Amortised cost HSHA AR 66,060 13,283
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB W& M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. €T B (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) EREAKEEBRERBEE

The Group’s financial instruments include equity
investments, trade and other debtors, amounts due
from associates, loans receivable, promissory note
receivable, short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other creditors and bank
overdrafts. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

Management manages and monitors these exposures
tfo ensure appropriate measures are implemented in
a timely and effective manner. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to these
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risks.

Market risks
(i) Currency risk

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amount of the Group’s net monetary assets
and advances fo foreign operations within the
Group denominated in currencies other than the
respective functional currencies of the relevant
group entities amounted to HK$260,632,000 (2015:
HK$18,995,000), which was denominated in CS.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk intfernally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

On this basis, there will be an increase/decrease
in post-tax profit for the year by HK$10,881,000
(2015: HK$793,000) where CS$ strengthens/
weakens against HKD by 5%. Management has
closely monitored foreign exchange exposure to
mitigate the foreign currency risk.

AEEZERMTABERERRE  BYW
B 5 RS EAM AR - UL
BIRIE - RMER  BUEARER &
HSRTER  ROTBEEFELERE  EHK
HAi AR RIRTTES - ZFERT
AFBENERMERE - BRETerT
BB R 2 R K an ] s B 5 L L 2 TR
REIIMT -

EREEEMENZEAR  BEREE
BB ARET - AEBE TS
R AR A EE R ERR 2T A
BEANE -

w5 R B
() E¥EEE

FEFERBRTAEEANEIN
¥B2RBENNEBREEERE Y
NEEEREUIINZ EEFTE &
260,632,000/ 7T (=& — A F :
18,995,000/ 7T) LA I LT 1E © A
HEEEZEEABZRINE R
B ASYHRRE  REEBEA
BRsINERR Z ATgE A IR EE) o

RULEE T B TER
#8553 B5%  F R EEF B
# 40, # 410,881,000 7T (= &
— AR F :793,000/87C) - BEHEED
ZYLERINEE N, - SREERE
HNES R B o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 %é_t_ F—NF=ZH=1—HIFF

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risks (contfinued)

(ii) Interest rate risk

As at 31st March, 2015, the Group was exposed to
fair value inferest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
promissory note issued by Hanny. There was no
exposure to such risk as at 31st March, 2016.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to loans receivable, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances and bank overdrafts
which are mainly arranged at floating rates.

Management has employed a treasury team
fo closely monitor interest rate movement and
manage the potential risk. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management monitors interest rate
change exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate change exposure should

the need arise.

The Group’'s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the Best Lending Rate
arising from the Group’s HKD-denominated loans

receivable and bank overdrafts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure fo interest rates for the
financial instruments at the end of the reporting
period which carried floating market interest rates.
The analysis is prepared assuming the assets and
liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 10
basis points increase or decrease for short-term
bank deposits and bank balances and 50 basis
points for loans receivable and bank overdrafts
are used when reporting interest rate risk internally
tfo key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 or 50 basis points, as
appropriate, higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year would increase/decrease by HK$244,000

(2015: HK$74,000).

2. & T H (#&)
(b) 2REAKREEEERKE (£)

mEEE(E)
(i) FEE g

—T-AF=-A=t—8 &&
II@%%% TZE BAEM R
mES R FEENXRER - R _F

—ANFE-ZA=+—HYEEHAE
B LB -

AREREBRHRTHFE
RIRE R - G ERRIT R IRIT
72 4R 775 3 T I 4 L % s A
R o

EEEEZEER/ NEARYER
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%MEM%FﬂﬁixﬂTﬂwo

$'§lﬁdﬁ"fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ¥12ﬂ
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ERERRBITEZER 2 &E
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BEHNEGIEAIGEE S 25T -
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B KEBZFEREBEFEZM
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 é:tt_-t_ FE—NF=HA=1—HIFF
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

2. & T EH (#&)
(b) cREAKREEBEREE (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risks (confinued)
(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities.
Management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group has appointed a special
team to monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
end of the reporting period.

If prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 5% higher/lower, post-tax profit for the
year would increase/decrease by HK$4,152,000
as a result of the changes in fair value of equity
investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to discharge their
obligations at the end of the reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
are the amounts stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group has determined
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
and loan debtor at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

e m R ()
(iii) B 6 8 15 /7 B
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

©

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31st March, 2016, the Group had concentration
of credit risk as the earnest money as disclosed in note
19 was paid to a single counterparty. As at 31st March,
2015, the Group had concentration of credit risk as the
entire amount of the promissory note receivable was
due from a single counterparty.

The credit risk on liquid fund is limited because
the counterparties are banks and other financial
institutions with high credit ratings. The Group does not
have significant concentration of credit risk on liquid
fund.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the ufilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The remaining contractual maturity for all of the
Group’s financial liabilities, based on the agreed
repayment terms, are on demand or less than 3
months.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair value measurements of the Group’s equity
investments are disclosed in note 18.

For financial instruments that are recorded at
amortised cost, the directors of the Company consider
that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
There were no significant changes in the business or
economic circumstances that would affect the fair
value of the Group’s financial instruments.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z—F—~N#F=H=4+—HI FZ

30. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

31.

As set out in note 21, during the year ended 31st March,
2015, the Group received a promissory note in the principal
amount of HK$300,000,000 as part of the consideration for
its disposal of the Group’s interests in Rosedale.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance for qualifying employees. The assets of the
scheme are separately held in funds under the control of
frustees.

The cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
paid and payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the scheme. Where there are
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the scheme prior to their interests in the Group’s
contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

The Group also joined a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.
No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

30.EXRFBHERS

31.
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32.OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/
COMMITMENTS

2. REBMORH R

(a) The Group as a lessee (a) XEBEBAEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
rented premises, which fall due as follows:

RMEMKR  AEEETAIHEZ AR
HAMELERL T Em A RKREHR
BRIAASE - WL FAEZ AT

2016 2015

— R —Z-hfF

HK$’000 HKS 000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 3,120 3,100
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZFHF (HEMEBEEN) 3,081 6,122
6,201 9,222

Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed,
for an average term of three to five years (2015: three
to five years).

—RIFEBR=ERAF(ZT—RF:
SERF)EREANKEEAME -

Included in the sums above is an amount of st ABE B TE— 54,232,000 0 (—
HK$4,232,000 (2015: HK$6,836,000) where the T HEE : 6,836,000 7)) 24%E 1
counterparty is an associate of the Group. FAAEBKNER LA NT o

(b) The Group as a lessor (b) AEEERAEHBAA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had MREREHR » AEFEEFE KRR 5
contracted with a tenant for future minimum lease B ESHRIBEIL - IHIWT -
payments which fall due as follows:

2016 2015

—RE —T—AfF

HK$°000 HKS 000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 516 528
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZFHF (HEMEBEEN) 1,290 1,892
1,806 2,420

The investment property held has committed tenant for
the next three years (2015: four years).

IRNERECEBAR=ZF(=F
—hE:mF)ZHEF -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 %t_-t_ FE—NF=HA=1—HIFF
33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 3.EERM
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$000
TET TET
Land and buildings TH KRBT - 2,838
Investment properties LAY - 18,759
- 21,597
As at 31st March, 2015, the above assets were pledged by A—E—RE=ZF=+—H AEEDIEKMA
the Group to secure banking and other financing facilities. L EENREHRTREMEERE - R—
As at 3Tst March, 2016, the pledge had been released upon T—-NE=-A=+—H8 #EHEREEEE
discharge of such facilities during the year. RE RSB 1ERE o
34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. BRI
During the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Group entered REBEE-_E—RE=-A=+—HIL&EE &~

info a shareholders” agreement with an investee, pursuant
to which the Group had agreed to provide funding to the
investee to subscribe for new shares to be issued upon the
issuance of funding notice by the investee up to the funding
commitment of HK$18,000,000 (2015: nil).

During the year ended 31st March, 2015, the Group had
enfered into standby commitment agreements, inter alia,
with an associate pursuant to which the Group had agreed
to subscribe for certain number of rights shares in the rights
offering of the relevant associate for an aggregate amount
of no more than C$1,794,000 (equivalent to HK$10,974,000)
if the subscription of the rights shares by other shareholders
fall short of the pre-determined levels. The rights offerings of
the associate had been completed during the year ended
31st March, 2016, and the subscriptions of the rights shares
by other shareholders were in excess of the pre-determined
levels. The Group had therefore been released from the
standby purchase commitments.

SEE-FRREURITIRRGZ - &k
AEEERENRELURBEHESBAER
&5%%}51 BEURBBETHRITZHKR

5 &| & & & 518,000,000 T (Z &
—ﬁi.ﬂ?i)
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7E) 55%2\\121 HXEA@Zi_é /\£|E_
B=+—BLtFERK ' BEMBRRMRE
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35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party transactions

During the year, the Group had transactions with
related parties, details of which are as follows:

—NFZA=F—HIFFE

35. @&

BEANLTHE

(o) BEALRS

RER > REBEATHREALTET
ZRHZHBWOT

2016 2015
—RE —hEF
Class of related party Nature of transactions HK$°000 HKS 000
B A+ 2R x5 HHE FHT FET
Associates of the Group Rentals and related building management
AREE 2 B R T fee charged by the Group 678 698
REBWRAE RIEEYEERE
Rentals and related building management
fee paid by the Group (Note) 2,794 2,737
AEBXNESRAEBMEERE (M)
Service fees charged by the Group 134 263
AEER TR
Note:  The transaction represented rentals and related Kt  EEARZEAEE R EEE 2 [

building management fee paid by the Group to
Great Intelligence Limited, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of ITC Properties. During the year
ended 31st March, 2016, the transaction constituted
a continuing connected fransaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of
this continuing connected tfransaction, which were
subject to the reporting requirements set out in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, were disclosed under
the "Connected Transactions” section of the Directors’
Report.

(b) Non-trade balances

©

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and are repayable upon request for
repayment. These amounts are neither past due nor
impaired and have no loan default history.

Compensation of key management personnel

Only the directors and chief executive are considered
fo be the key management personnel of the Group.
The remuneration of directors and the chief executive
is disclosed in note 6. The remuneration of directors is
defermined by the Board of Directors of the Company
and its remuneratfion committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

¥ 2 & I B 2 FlGreat Intelligence
Limited X & RIEAY X ERE o
REBEZE=-ZT—X~"E=A=+—81
FE - BEXSHEK EMHEAFE14A
BEMAELRHEBERS - RIERE
BERX D2 wt5 (HEF ETARAISE

UAEFBCEHBRE)EREEFE
HREENAERHIHTHRE -

(b) FEZ &R

(©)

FE MRt & R R SRR IE A - R BE
EREE - BRAFAL A HSRER

B RE R -

EEEEEZHFE

EEENTIBTBRABERASEAEE
ZEEEEE -BERTIBTBRABRZ
FHERMEerWE -EE2MET)
HARREEEMNEFHEESLEE
MABZRBERMZBEMETE

129

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 £ £ $f &

A\



ITC CORPORATION LIMITED & # & ¥ % FHR &3 /

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 &= —F—#=H=+—HIFE
36.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

36. FRALRRAZHMBEHR

COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-XEF TR
HKS’000 HKS 000
FET FET
Assets BE
Investments in subsidiaries BB A A& - -
Other receivables H b IR 242,365 265
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE 1,666,493 1,828,202
Bank balances and cash WRITHEGE MRS 10,010 10,064
1,918,868 1,838,531
Liabilities =L
Other payables H {th fE S 3RIE 2,120 1,468
Bank overdraft RITEX 9,948 9,997
12,068 11,465
1,906,800 1,827,066
Capital and reserves B #EE
Share capital [N 16,677 14,338
Share premium and reserves [0 m (E & 1,890,123 1,812,728
Total equity (Note) e (W) 1,906,800 1,827,066
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36,FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 36. ERAARD R ZHBER (&)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share Bii: AATIZHBA - B EREREE &
premium and reserves are as follows: SERER
Capital
Share Share  Contributed  redemption Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve profits Total
RAKE
Bx ROEE E4ES e Z5HaA ait

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKs 000 HKs 000 HK$ 000 HKs 000
TET TET TET TET THAT TET

At Tst April, 2014 RZZE-MENA-A 12,702 730,059 222,435 908 901,796 1,867,900
Loss and fotal comprehensive ~ AEEFER2H

expenses for the year g - - - - (6.326) (6,326)
Issue of shares BakH

- scrip dividend —HRKE 1,636 94,861 - - - 96,497
Transaction costs on BORH2ZARA

issue of shares - (108) - - - (108)
Dividend paid BEEE - (96,497) - - (34,400) (130,897)
At 31st March, 2015 RZZ-HE=A=F+—-A 14,338 728,315 222,435 908 861,070 1,827,066
Loss and total comprehensive RN E B R 2 ML

expenses for the year g - - - - (3.422) (3.422)
Issue of shares Bk

- on placing of shares —RERR 1,200 104,400 - - - 105,600

- scrip dividend ~UBRRE 1,139 73,920 - - - 75,059
Transaction costs on BARGZRABA

issue of shares - (2.811) = = = (2.817)
Dividend paid BRRE - (75.059) - - (19.633) (94,692)
At 31st March, 2016 RZE-A"E=A=F—H 16,677 828,765 222,435 908 838,015 1,906,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB WK M

For the year ended 31st March, 2016 &= —F—#=H=+—HIFE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37.FEMBLAAIER
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st AABFENBARIR-_ZE—XRER_Z

March, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Percentage of
issued share capital

—HF=A=+t—HZHBWOT :

Place of Issued and HEBTRAED L
incorporation/ fully paid held by attributable
Name of subsidiary registration share capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
WEAR AR RUBE/AMEE BRIRMRZRE HEAAREE REEES TEEHR
2016 2015 2016 2015
Z®-xF “T-1F -B-Af 1%
% % % %
Directly owned
EERR
All Combine Investments British Virgin USs1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands ordinary share REER
EBRRHE 1ETLER
Great Infelligence Limited British Virgin USs1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Islands ordinary share REER
EBRRHE 1ETLER
ITC Investment Holdings British Virgin USs1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islandis ordinary share REER
EBRRHE 1ETLER
ITC Management Group British Virgin Uss2 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islandis ordinary shares REER
EBRRHE BETERR
Large Scale Investments British Virgin USs1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Islandis ordinary share REER
EBRRHE 1ETLER

N
Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2016 #Z=F—~N#F=H=4+—HI - FZ
37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37.FEMBLAAIER (&)

(continued)
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st KRR EENBRAAR-_E—"FE_F
March, 2016 and 2015 are as follows: (continued) —hFE=A=+—"HZHBEWOT : (&)
Percentage of
issued share capital
Place of Issued and HERTREED L
incorporation/ fully paid held by attributable
Name of subsidiary registration share capital the Company to the Group Principal activities
WEARER RUBE/EMEE BRIRMZRA HAARRE REEERS TEEH
2016 2015 2016 2015
Z%-xF “T-0F -B-AfF 1%
% % % %
Indirectly owned
BEEE
Burcon Group Limited Canada C$1,000 100 100 100 100 Investment and
IIEYN class A common property holding
shares RERMEFE
1,000/ 7
AR ERR
Great Infelligence Holdings ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Securities trading and
Limited 5 ordinary shares freasury investment
2B T ERR EHEEREBRE
ITC Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Provision of finance
EEYBEBRAT BE ordinary shares RftEE
WL EBR
ITC Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 100 100 Provision of
EECXERERAR 5 ordinary shares management,
2B LB administration and

financial services and

freasury investment
REER  THEHME

REREHRZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

For fhe year ended 31st March, 2016 éét_—t_ =
37.

38.

0% ®RMS

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st
March, 2016 and 2015 are as follows: (confinued)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies.

Other than Burcon Group Limited which operates in
Canada, all of the above subsidiaries have their principal
place of operations in Hong Kong.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the Group for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group at the end of the year. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) In April 2016, the Group entered intfo a convertible
note agreement to subscribe for Burcon’'s 3-year 8%
convertible note (the "Notfe”) with a principal amount
of C$2 million. The Note was issued in May 2016 and
can be converted at C$4.01 per share (subject to
adjustments) from 1st July, 2016 upto its maturity date.

(b) As disclosed in note 19, the Company entered into
the MOU with an independent third party in October
2015 in respect of a possible acquisition of 25% to
33% indirect infterest in a reputable hotel located in
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, the expiry date
of which was extended to 29th April, 2016. In April 2016,
the Company enfered into a second supplemental
memorandum of understanding fo further extend the
expiry date of the MOU to 31st May, 2016. On 31st
May, 2016, the Company entered into a termination
agreement to terminate the MOU and the earnest
money was refunded to the Company accordingly.

—NFZA=F—HIFFE

37.

38.

TEMBARAER (&)

AABETEMBLRAR -F
—hFE=ZA=1t—HZFHBWMOT :

/\E&
(,ﬁ,f)

RAFER - HENB LR ETERNE
% o

B LB RRERBERAT -

MBurcon Group LimitedfE INE AL & )
FIELIMBARIC T ELE W BE
7S o

ERINFBZARRMBAR - DEERRE
BYEANRBFERENERAEEFRE
EEREMZATF - EERR - SFHEMH
BAREEHREANTTE -

BEHWERER

(@) R=ZE /\EEP_TIH REBFTL—IE]
?ﬁlﬁxTﬁ%Tﬁm AR EEBurcon A& £ 58
2,000,000 7T 2 = “F HABE Al A IR = %
(TZ2E]) - ZEER_ZT—EH A%
ToY¥AEE—R"ELtA—HRBEE
B IER&R%4.01 07T (A T %) 1T
B o

(b) FELNMIFE19FTIEEE - RARIR=ZE—H
FE+RER—ZBIFE = LR e
8 RABBAREBINEREBTMLE
BT E 2 — S M B 5 25% 2 33%H £
o AEREESEZ Em BB
Eﬁfg—/\iﬂﬂfﬂ—hﬁ ° b_/\\\:%é
—NFWMA - ARRARFIE B TEER
RS - SRR E =k [Em B HiE
—ikﬁé TE-RNERA=1+— Ho
RZE—R"FRA=+—8" &R
ﬂ%ﬂﬁ%%#&tzﬁfmﬁmﬁ : ﬂﬁa?ft&t
MAARRERE

N
/Z
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
ft % W =

RESULTS
Year ended 31st March,
BZE=A=1t—-BHLEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

—E——F —ZT—=F —F-NF —ZT—FF ZEBE-RE

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

F&ET FET FET FET FET

Revenue ON 19,548 17,798 7.121 9,099 15,027
Profit before taxation B %1 5 & A 434,334 214,136 109,710 240,528 436,334
Taxation 18 = (®) (122) (40) (416)

Profit for the year attributable  ZRNAFIEA A
to owners of the Company JRE b 28 4F 5 4 7

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

434,334 214,128 109,588 240,488 435,918

EEREE
As at 31st March,
R=B=+-—-H

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

T ZE-=F ZZ-NMF —E-—HF ZE-AE

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET

Total assets EEHAE 2,793,883 3,013,732 3,115,635 3,125,597 3,605,991
Total liabilities BfREE (180,623)  (159,340)  (110,454) (18,062)  (72,128)

Shareholders’ funds attributable N2 &l H A FE(L
to owners of the Company BREE

2,613,260 2,854,392 3,005,181 3,107,535 3,533,863
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